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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Stockholder and Board of Directors
National Grid USA:

[n our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of capitalization
and the related consolidated statements of income, of comprehensive income, of retained
earnings and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
National Grid USA and its subsidiaries at March 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with audiling standards generally accepted in the Umted States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are frec of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, and evaluating the overall financial stalement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

As described in Note A to the financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which
it accounts for income taxes effective April 1, 2007.
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October 27, 2009




NATIONAL GRID USA AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(m millions oj'dbllars) . : March 31,
2609 2008

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 424.9 5 1,169.9
Restricted cash and special deposits 197.3 91.2

Accounts receivable 2,531.0 2,474.5

Unbilled revenues 718.9 941.2
Allowance for uncollectible accounts oy (299.8)

Gas in storage, at average cost 4£79.4 336.5

Materials and supplics, at average cost 159.8 3893
Derivative contracts 51.5 169.5
Regulatory assets 683.4 539.5
Derivative contracts - regulatory asset 1285 76.3
Prepayments 1719 259.2

Current deferred income taxes 218.5 188.5

Other 8.0 58.8
Discontinued assets held for sale 36,0 3,025.4

Total current assets 5,650.3 9,420.0

Equity investments and other 469.9 5042
Property plant and equipment, net 18,322.9 17,410.2

Deferred charges
Regulatory assets:

Regulatory assets 5,569.2 5,4354

Derivative contracts 231.5 147.4

Goodwill 7.372.4 7,326.5
Intangible assets, net of amortization 165.5 2309
Derivative contracts 20.1 132.1

Other 216,1 276.1

Total deferred charpes 13,574.9 13,548.4

Total assets $  38,018.0 $ 40,8828

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




NATIONAL GRID USA AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(fn millions of dollars) March 31,
2009 2008

LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION

Current Habilities
Accounts payable 3 1,269.8 3 1,620.7
Commercial paper - 1,115.0
Current portion of long-term debt 471.4 992.6
Taxcs acerued “ 543.8 _ 301.0
Customer deposits 107.6 107.6
Interest accrued 211.2 199.8
Regulatory Habilitics 2150 205.4
Regulatory Habilities-Derivatives 46.0 171.4
Intercompany money pool 1,975.8 1,112.0
Motes payable - other - 298.40
Current portion of accrued Yankee nuclear plant costs 14.8 23.2
Derivative contracts a3z 81.8
Discontinued current liabilities held for sale 12,7 1,860.8
Other 510.3 4794
Total current Habilities 5,70%.6 8,568.7

Deferred credits and other liabilitics
Regulatory liabilities:

Regulatory tiabilities 1,210.1 1,186.6
Removal costs recovered 1,392.2 1,305.9
Derivative accounts 9.3 1134
Assels retirement obligations LN 67.6
Deferred income taxes 2,344.0 2,427.3
Postretiremient benefits and other reservos 3,776.8 2,864,7
Envirommental remedialion costs 1,382.1 [,282.9
Derivatives contracts 252.2 150.6
Other 1,108.6 839.1
Total Deferred credils and other tinbilitles 11,543.0 10,238.1
Capitalization
Common stack (3.10 par value) . -
Paid in capital 13,043.5 14,0434
Retained earnings 22,3517 1,875.5
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (1,043.7) (512.6)
Total comman shareholders' eguity 14,351.5 15,406.3
Minority interest in subsidiaries 18,2 19.3
Cumulative prelerred stock, par value $100 per share 34.8 348
Long-term debt 5,130.5 5,391.2
Long-term debt to affiliates 1,224.4 1,224.4
Total eapitalization _ 20,7654 22,0760
Total capitalization and liabilitics b 38,018.9 $ 40,882.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




NATIONAL GRID USA AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

(in millions of dollars)

For the years ended
March 31,

2009 2008

Revenues
Gas Distribution

7,321.6 $ 36946

Electric Services 8,194.6 7,610.8

Other 163.2 95.2
Total Revenues 15,679.4 13,4006
Operating expenses

Purchased gas for sale 4,775.9 3,8049

Electricity purchased 3,%44.2 34928

Contract termination charges and nuclear shutdown charges 24.6 40.0

Operation and maintenance 3,750.3 2,801.3

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 803.0 642.5

Amortization of regulatory assets, stranded costs and

rate plan deferrals 553.5 531.9

Other taxes 905.2 630.6
Total Operating Expenses 14,365.7 11,9440
Operating income 1,313.7 1,456.6
Other income and (deductions)

Interest on long-term debt (312.4) (328.7)

Other interest, including affiliate interest (266.7) (176.4)

Other 38.9 14.7
Total other income and (deductions) (540.2) (490.4)
Income taxes 320.5 345.3
Pividend on preferred stock of subsidiaries 1.3 1.8
Total continuing operations 451,7 619.1

Income from discontinued operations, net of

tax expense of $17.5 million and $30.2 million 24.6 27.8

Gain on sale of discontinued businesses, net of tax - 15.2

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 24.6 43.0

Net income

476.3 3 662, 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




NATIONAL GRID USA AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Censolidated Statemoents of Comprehensive Income

(in millions qf dollars) For the years ended March 31,
2009 2008
Net incoine 3 4763 $ 6621
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes:
Unrealized (gains) losses on investments (15.4) (13.6)
Unrealized {gains) losses on hedges 2.4 -
Change in pension and other postretirement obligations (81717 (100.5)
Reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) included in
net income (0.4) 3.2
Total other comprehensive income (loss) (531.1) {110.9)
Change in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) g (54.8) § 5512
Related tax oxpense (benefit):
Unrealized (gains) losses on investments (10.3) o.n
Unrealized {gains) losses on hedges 1.6 -
Change in pension and ofhr postretirement obligations (345.3) (67.0)
Reclassification adjustment for gains (fosses) included in
net income (0.3) 2.1
Total tax expense (benefit) $  (354.2) $ (74.0)

NATIONAL GRID USA AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings

{in millions of dollars} For the years ended March 31,
2009 2008

Retained earnings at beginning of period $ 1,875.5 § 1,5500
Adoption of new accounting standard FIN 48 - (8.4}
Adjusted balance at beginning of period 1,875.5 1,541.6
Net income 476.3 662.1
Dividends on preferred stock (0.1) 0.1
Return of capital to parent company . (321.7
Other e {0.4)

Retained eaming‘s af end of perind 3 1,351.7 $ 1,875.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




NATIONAL GRID USA AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions of dollars)

For the years ended March 31,

Operating activities: 2009 2008
Net income 3 4763 % 662.1
Adjustments 10 reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Net (income) loss from discontinued operations {24.6) (43.0)
Depreciation and amortization 803.0 642.5
Amortization of stranded ¢osts and rate plan deferrals 553.5 5319
Income from equity investments (22.1) (8.6)
Dividends from equity investments 0.3 7.5
Merger related and other non-cash charges 118.8 (47.5)
Provision for deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (743.3) (76.6)
Net pension and other post retirement expense/cash payment (3527} (271.8)
Changces in operating assets and labilities:
Accounts receivable, net 294.6 (803.9)
Muaterials and supplies (75.3) 357.7
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (126.6) 194.8
Environmental payments (171.0) (64.9)
Other, net 19.0 66.9
Net cash provided by operating activities 785.9 1,152.1
Fnvesting activitics:
Plant expenditures (1,516.3) (1,105.6)
Acquisitions - (7,545.1)
Net procecds from sale of subsidary and assets 2,989.3 31138
Change in restricted cash (149.7) 439
Other, net {45.2) 40.9
Net cash used in investing activijics 1,278,1 (8,252.1)
Financing activities:
Dividends paid on connnon and preferred stock (0.1) 41.8)
Dividends paid on common stock of minority interests - 2.
Return of capital to parent company - (327.7)
Redemption of preferred stock - (18.0}
Buyback of minority interest conumon stock - (1.3)
Capital contribution from parent for acquisitions - 7,545,
Buyback of common stock (1,000.0) (1,075.5)
Payment of fong-term debt (923.3) -
Procecds from long-term debt 160.5 1473
Increase in intercompany money-pool 863.8 107.5
Net {decrease) increase in external short-lezm debt {1,412,9) £,130.6
Net cash provided by financing activitics {2,312.0) 7,464.2
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (278.0) 14,2
Cash flow from discontinued operations - Operating activities (28.8) (2.0}
Cash flow from discontinued operations - Investing activitics (13.2) (20.1)
Cash flow from discontinued operations - Financing activities (425.0) (9.5}
Cash transferred from KeySpan ‘ - 5554
Cash and cash cquivalents, bcginnin& of period 1,169.9 2819
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of pericd 5 424.9 % 1,169.9
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest paid 8 3703 § 458.3
Taxgs paid 3 9384 3 413.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




NATIONAL GRID USA AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Consolidated Statement of Capitalization

{in millions of dollars} March 31,
2009 2008 2009 2008

Common Shareholders' Equity Shares Issued Amounts
Common stock, $0.10 par value 1,000 1,000 3 - % .
Additional Paid in Capital 13,043.5 14,043 .4
Retained carnings 2,351.7 1,875.5
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,043.7) (512.6)
Total Commeon Sharchelders’ Equity 14,351.5 15,406.3
Minority Interest in Subsidiarics 18.2 19.3
Cumulative Preforred Stock, $100 and $50 par value 944 544 34.8 34.8
Long - Term Debt Interest Rates
Medium and Long - Term Debt
Buropean Medium Term Note Various 3.55%-5.51% 93.2 159.1
Noles payable 4.65% - 9.75% 4.65% - 9.75% 2,690.9 3,456.3
Total Medium and Long-Term Debt 2,784.1 3,615.4
Gas Facilities Reveaue Bonds Variable Variable 230.0 2300

4,70% - 6.95% 4.70% - 6.95% 410.5 410.5
Total Gas Facilitics Revenue Bonds 640.5 640.5
Promissory Notes to LIPA
Pollution Control Revenue Bonds 5.15% 5.15% 108.0 108.0
Electric Facllity Revenue Bonds 5.30% 5.30% 47.4 47.4
Total Promissory Notes to LIPA 155.4 1554
First Mortgage Bonds 6.34%-9.63%  572%-10.25% 1334 205.1
State Authority Financing Bonds Variable Variable 1,199.7 1,219.9
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds 5.25% 5.25% 1283 128.3
Committed Facilities Variable Variable 543.0 3825
Inter-Company Notes 5.52% 5.52% 1,224.4 1,224 4
Subtotai 6,808.8 7,571.5
Fair value adjustments 235 36.7
Less: current malutities 471.4 992.6
Totgl Long - Term Debt 6,360.9 6,615.6
Total Capitalization $ 20,7654 § 22,0760

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




NATIONAL GRID USA AND SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Nature of Operations

National Grid USA (referred to as the Company, NGUSA, we, us, and our) is a public utility
holding company with regulated subsidiaries engaged in the transmission, distribution, and sale
of both electricity and natural gas. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of National Grid
ple (the Parent), National Grid ple is a public limited company incorporated under the laws of
BEngland and Wales. On August 24, 2007, the Company acquired KeySpan Corporation
(KeySpan and the KeySpan Acquisition) including its subsidiaries (See Note L, “Acquisitions”).

The Company’s electricity and gas distribution subsidiarics serve over six million customers in
New York State, Massachusetts, Rhode Island and New Hampshire, The Company’s New
England subsidiaries include: New England Power Company (NEP), The Narragansett Electric
Company (Narragansett), Massachusetts Electric Company (Mass Electric), Nantucket Electric
Company (Nantucket Electric), Granite State Electric Company (Granite State), Boston Gas
Company, Colonial Gas Company, Essex Gas Company and EnergyNorth Natural Gas Inc. The
Company’s New York subsidiaries include: Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (Niagara
Mohawk), KeySpan Generation, LLC, The Brooklyn Union Gas Company (Brooklyn Union)
and KeySpan Gas Hast Corporation (KeySpan Gas East).

Additionally, Company subsidiaries operate the electric transmission and distribution system
owned by the Long Island Power Authority (LIPA), in Nassau and Suffolk Countics in Long
[sland. The Company also owns and provides capacity to and produces energy for LIPA from
our generating facilities located on Long Island and manages fuel supplies for LIPA to fuel our
Long Island generating [acilities. These services are provided in accordance with existing long-
term service contracts having remaining terms that range from one to five years and power
purchase agreements having remaining terms that range from five to nineteen years,

Company subsidiaries also owned or leased and operated the 2,200 MW Ravenswood Facility
located in Queens, New York, and the 250 MW combined-cycle Ravenswood Expansion.
Collectively the Ravenswood Facility and Ravenswood Expansion are referred to as the
“Ravenswood Generating Station.” The New York Public Service Commission (NYPSC)
required the divestiture of the Ravenswood Generating Station as a condition for their approval
of the KeySpan Acquisition, and as a result, the Ravenswood Generating Station was sold in
August 2008, Accordingly, the Ravenswood Generating Station is reflected as discontinued
operations in the financial statements. Additionally during fiscal year 2009, the Company sold
most of its unregulated subsidiaries engaged in the construction, leasing, and ownership of
telecommunications infrastructure, and in enginecring and consulting services. These
subsidiaries are also classified as discontinued operations.

The Company’s other operating subsidiaries are primarily involved in gas production and
development, underground pas storage, liquefied natural gas storage, retail electric marketing,
service and maintenance of energy systems, and the development of natural gas pipelines and
other energy-related projects. Additionally, the Company has an equity ownership interest in two




hydro-transmission electric companies as well as a minority ownership interest in three regional
nuclear generating companies that own generating facilities that have been decommissioned,

2. Basis of Presentation

The Company’s accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America (US GAAP), including accounting principles for rate-regulated entities
with respect to the Company’s subsidiaries engaged in the transmission and distribution of gas
and electricity (regulated subsidiaries), and are in accordance with the accounting requirements
and ratemaking practices of the regulatory authorities having jurisdiction (Sce fem 4
“Accounting for the Effects of Rate Regulation™).

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries and entities for which the Company has control, Investments in which the
Company can exercise significant influence over the operations of the investee (generally where
the Company owns 20% of the investee but not in excess of 50%) are accounted for under the
equity method of accounting, All intercompany transactions and balances between consolidated
subsidiaries have been eliminated in consolidation. The Consolidated Statement of Income
include the results of acquired operations since the date of acquisition, the most significant being
the acquisition of KeySpan on August 24, 2007,

The results of operations for companies acquired or disposed of are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the effective date of acquisition or up to date of disposal,

Upon acquisition, KeySpan aligned certain of its accounting policies with NGUSA’s policies
including certain assumptions undetlying the calculations for its pension and other
postretirement reserves where appropriate, Additionally, KeySpan adjusted certain assumptions
undetlying the calculations for its environmental reserve to align those assumptions with
NGUSA's environmental reserve assumptions where appropriate. (See Note L “Acquisitions” for
additional details on the accounting policy matters).

3. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to
make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheets, and revenues and expenses
for the period. These estimates may differ from actual amounts if future circumstances cause a
change in the assumptions used to calculate these estimates,

4, Accounting for the Effects of Rate Regulation

The accounting records for our gas and electric regulated utilities arc maintained in accordance
with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the NYPSC, the New Hampshire Public
Utilities Commission (NHPUC), the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities (MADPU)
and the Rhode Island Public Utility Commission (RIPUC), Our financial statements reflect the
ratemaking policies and actions of these regulators in conformity with US GAAP for rate-
regulated enterprises, Our electric generation subsidiary is not subject to state rate regulation, but
is subject to Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) regulation.

All of our transmission and distribution regulated utilities are subject to the provisions of
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
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(SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Reguiation,” This statement
recognizes the ability of regulators, through the ratemaking process, to create future cconomic
benefits and obligations affecting rate-regulated companies. Accordingly, we record these future
economic benefits and obligations as regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities. (See Note B
“Rate and Regulatory™).

3. Goodwill

National Grid plic’s acquisitions include the acquisitions by the Company of New England
Electric System, Eastern Utilities Associates (EUA), Niagara Mohawk, the Rhode Island gas
assets of New England Gas Company and KeySpan. Al of these acquisitions were accounted for
by the purchase method of accounting, the application of which includes the recognition of
goodwill. Goodwill was approximately $7.4 billion at March 31, 2009 and 2008,

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, including the post acquisition period through
August 2008, the provisional fair values applied to certain balance sheet accounts were reviewed
and a number of adjustments were made to those provisional values as a result of better
information being available resulting in an adjustment to goodwill of $49.1 million. See Note 1.
“Acquisitions” for additional details.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company
reviews its goodwill annually for impairments in the fourth quarter of its fiscal year or whenever
indicators of impairment are present. The Company utilized a discounted cash flow approach
incorporating its most recent business plan forecasts in the performance of the annual goodwill
impairment test. The result of the annual analysis determined that no impairment adjustment (o
goodwill carrying value was required.

6. Revenue Recognition

Electric and Gas Utility Services: The Company’s regulated subsidiaries charge customers for
electric and gas service in accordance with rates approved by FERC and the applicable state
regulatory commissions on a monthly basis,

The cost of gas and electricity used is recovered when billed to firm customers included in utility
tariffs. Any difference is deferred pending recovery {rom or refund to firm customers. Further,
net revenue from tariff gas balancing services, off-system sales and certain on-system
interruptible sales are refunded, for the most part, to firm customers subject to certain sharing
provisions.

The Company’s distribution subsidiaries follow the policy of accruing the estimated amount of
base rate revenues for electricity and gas delivered but not yet billed (unbilled revenues), to
match costs and revenues. The unbilled revenue at March 31, 2009 and 2008 was $718.9 million
and $941.2 million, respectively, The distribution subsidiaries normalize the difference between
revenue and expenses from energy conservation programs, commodity purchases, transmission
service and contract termination charges.

Brooklyn Union, KeySpan Gas East, Niagara Mohawk and Narragansett gas utility tariffs

contain weather normalization adjustments that largely offset shortfalls or excesses of firm net
revenues (revenues less gas costs and revenue taxes) during a heating season due to variations
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from normal weather. Revenues are adjusted each month the clause is in effect. Gas utility rate
structures for the other gas distribution subsidiaries contain no weather normalization feature;
therefore their net revenues are subject to weather related demand fluctuations. As a result,
fluctuations from normal weather may have a significant positive or negative effect on the results
of these operations, To mitigate the effect of fluctuations from normal weather on our financial
position and cash flows, we may enter into weather related derivative instruments from time to
time.

LIPA Agreements: KeySpan and LIPA are parties of three major long-term service agreements
that (i) provide to LIPA all operation, maintenance and construction services and significant
administrative services relating to the Long Island electric transmission and distribution (T&D)
System pursuant to the Management Services Agreement (the MSA); (ii) supply LIPA with
electric generating capacity, energy conversion and ancillary services from our Long Island
generating units pursuant to the Power Supply Agreement (the PSA); and (i) manage all aspects
of the fuel supply for our Long Island generating facilities, as well as all aspects of the capacity
and energy owned by or under contract to LIPA pursuant to the Energy Management Agreement
(the EMA). The MSA, PSA and EMA all are collectively referred to as the “LIPA Agreements.”

The Company’s compensation for managing the electric transmission and distribution system
owned by LIPA under the MSA consists of two components: a minimum compensation
component of $224 million per year and a variable component based on electric sales. The §224
million component will remain unchanged for three years and then increase annually by 1.7%,
plus inflation. The variable component, which will comprise no more than 20% of KeySpan's
compensation, is based on electric sales on Long Island exceeding a base amount of 16,558
gigawalt hours, increasing by 1.7% in each year. Above that level, the Company will receive
approximately 1.34 cents per kilowatt hour for the first contract year, 1.29 cenis per kilowatt
hour in the second contract year (plus an annual inflation adjustment), 1.24 cents per kilowatt
hour in the third contract year (plus an annual inflation adjustment), with the per kilowatt hour
rate thereafter adjusted annually by inflation.

Pursuant to the MSA, the company must meet eighteen (18) performance metrics, one of which
is a Customer Satisfaction metrie, Failure to achieve a minimum level of performance under this
metric for three consccutive years gives rise to an event of default under the MSA. The
measured results of the Customer Satisfaction performance metric were below minimum
threshold for the 2006 and 2007 contract years. The 2008 results were released, but LIPA and
KeySpan had a dispute as to interpretation: LIPA asserted that KeySpan had failed the metric in
2008; however, KeySpan took the position that it satisfied the 2008 threshold. LIPA and
KeySpan entered into settlement negotiations to resolve this dispute and the parties have reached
an agreement in principle to seitle this matter. Under the salient terms of the seitlement, (a)
LIPA will waive its claim of default under the MSA, (b) KeySpan will remit a settlement
payment in the sum of $ 1million, (c) the penalty for failing the Customer Satisfaction metric will
be increased from $1 million to $2 million, (d) KeySpan will transfer certain assets that are not
critical to KeySpan’s business to LIPA in advance of an obligation that manifests at MSA
expiration in 2013, and (¢) KeySpan will evaluate and process LIPA information services
initiatives pursuant to its governance policies. The parties have also agreed to revisions to the
Customer Satisfaction metric that change (a) how performance is measured, (b} the vendors
providing the survey services for the metric, and (c) how penalties are assessed. The settlement
will not have a material impact on KeySpan’s financial statements. It is anticipated that the
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settlement documents will be executed by the parties before the end of calendar year 2009 and
forwarded to the New York State Comptroller and Attorney General for approval.

In addition, the Company sells to LIPA under the PSA all of the capacity and, to the extent
requested, energy conversion services from its existing Long Island based oil and gas-fired
generating plants, Sales of capacity and encrgy conversion services are made under rates
approved by the FERC. Rates charged to LIPA include a fixed and variable component. The
variable component is billed to LIPA on a monthly per megawatt hour basis and is dependent on
the number of megawatt hours dispatched. The PSA provides incentives and penalties that can
total $4 million annually for the maintenance of the output capability and the efficiency of the
generating facilities.

Pursuant to the EMA, the Company (i) procures and manages fuel supplies for LIPA to fuel
KeySpan’s Long Island based generating facilitics; (i) performs off-system capacity and energy
purchases on a least-cost basis to meet LIPA’s needs; and (iii) makes off-system sales of output
from the Long Island based generating facilities and other power supplies cither owned or under
contract to LIPA. In exchange for these services we carn an annual fee of $1.5 million. LIPA is
entitled to two-thirds of the profit from any off-system energy sales arranged by us. In addition,
the EMA provides incentives and penalties that can total $5 million annually for performance
related to fuel purchases and off-system power purchases. The original term for the fuel supply
service described in (i) is 15 years, expiring May 28, 2013 and the original term for the off-
system purchases and sales services described in (i) and (iit), collectively, “Power Supply
Management Services” was eight years, expiring May 28, 2006. The term for the Power Supply
Management Services has been extended several limes, most recently in 2007 when the parties
amended the EMA to extend the term for such services until December 31, 2009, provided that
LIPA shall have the right to terminate the Power Supply Management Services at any time upon
60 days prior notice.

Other Revenues: Revenues earned by our non-regulated subsidiaries for service and
maintenance contracts associated with small commercial and residential appliances are
recognized as earned or over the life of the service contract, as appropriate. We have unearncd
revenue recorded in other non current liabilities — other on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
totaling $25.3 million as of March 31, 2009. This balance represents primarily unearned
revenues for service contracts and is generally amortized to income over a one year period.

7, Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at original cost. Property, plant and equipment related to
KeySpan and its subsidiaries is stated at original cost less accumulated depreciation up to the
date of acquisition. Accurmulated depreciation for KeySpan and its subsidiaries reflects additions
to the reserve balance from the date KeySpan was acquired. The cost of additions to utility plant
and replacements of retired units of property are capitalized. Costs include direct material, labor,
overhead and allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) (See ltem 8 “AFUDC”
below). Replacement of minor items of utility plant and the cost of current repairs and
maintenance are charged to expense. Whenever utility plant is retired, its original cost, together
with the cost of removal, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. In addition,
included in property, plant and equipment is intangible assets related to software development
costs of $324.8 million and $312.2 million at March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and




associated amortization of $270.0 million and $236.5 million at March 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

At March 31,
(in millions of dollars) ) 2009 2008
Property Plant and Equipment
Electric plant 3 £3,4129 § 12,759.5
Gas plant 8,799.2 8,182.7
Common and other plant 777.9 712.8
Construction work-in-process 638.0 642.1
Total utility plant 23,628.0 22,2971
1.ess; accumulated depreciation and amortization (5,341.6) {4,924.0)
Net property plant and equipment 18,286.4 17,373.1
(as production 42.2 39.1
Less: depletion (5.7) (2.0)
Net gas production plant 36.5 37.1
Total Plant 3 18,3229 § 17,410.2
8 ATUDC

The Company capitalizes AFUDC as part of construction costs in amounts equivalent to the cost
of funds devoted to plant under construction for its regulated businesses. AFUDC represents the
composite interest and equity costs of capital funds used to finance that portion of construction
costs not yet cligible for inclusion in rate base. AFUDC is capitalized in “Property, plant and
equipment, net” with offsetting credits to “other interest, including affiliate interest” and “other
income and (deductions).” This method is in accordance with established rate-making practices
under which our utility subsidiaries are permitted to earn a return on, and the recovery of,
prudently incurred capital costs through their ultimate inclusion in rate base and in the provision
for depreciation. AFUDC rates vary by Company and regulatory jurisdiction.

Capitalized interest for the year ended 2009 and 2008 was $8.3 million and $9.1 million
respectively and is reflected as a reduction to interest expense.

9, Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation expense is determined using the straight-line method. The depreciation rates for the
Company’s gas and electric subsidiaries are based on periodic studies of the estimated useful
lives of the assets and the estimated cost to remove them net of salvage value. The Company’s
gas and electric subsidiaries use composite depreciation rates that are approved by the respective
federal and state utility commissions, The cost of property retired is charged to accumulated
depreciation. The Company recovers cost of removal through rates charged to customers as a
portion of depreciation expense. At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had cumulative
costs recovered in excess of costs incurred totaling $1.4 billion and $1.3 billion, respectively.
This amount is reflected as a regulatory liability.
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The weighted average service life, in years, for each asset category is presented in the table
below:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008
Asset Category!
Electric 32 32
Gas 35 34
Common 18 22

We also had $1.38 billion and $1.32 billion of other property at March 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, consisting of $638.0 million and $642.1 million at March 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, of construction work in progress with the remaining assets held by our corporate
service subsidiary and our non regulated subsidiaries. These assets consist largely of land,
buildings, office equipment, furniture, vehicles, computer and telecommunications equipment
and systems. These assets have depreciable lives ranging from 3 to 40 years.

The Company’s repair and maintenance costs, including planned major maintenance for turbine
and penerator overhauls, are expensed as incurred unless they represent replacement of property
to be capitalized. Planned major maintenance cycles primarily range from seven to cight years,
Smaller periodic overhauls are performed approximately every 18 months.

Regulatory assets, including those covered by contract termination charges, are amorlized In
accordance with the provisions of the regulated subsidiaries’ rate settlement agreements and,
therefore, are not necessarily amortized on a straight-line basis. NEP and Niagara Mohawk had
deferred certain costs related to deregulation, including purchased power contract buyouts, and
Tosses on the sale of generation assets as a regulatory asset (See Note B “Rates and Regulatory”).
Niagara Mohawk’s costs are being amortized unevenly over ten years with larger amounts being
amortized in the latter years, consistent with authorized recovery through rates.

10. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company classifies short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less
as cash equivalents.

11. Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of margin accounts for commodity and interest rate hedging activity,
health care claims deposits, New York State Department of Conservation securitization for
certain site cleanup, and workers’ compensation premium deposits.

12, Income and Exeise Tax

Federal and State income taxes are recorded under the provisions of SFAS No. 109 “Accounting
for Income Taxes.” Income taxes have been computed utilizing the asset and liability approach
that requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the tax consequences of
temporary differences by applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of exisling assets
and liabilities, Deferred investment tax credits are amortized over the useful life of the
underlying property. Effective April 1, 2007, the Company implemented FASB issued FIN 48
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB No, 109" which
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applies to all income tax positions reflected on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet that
have been included in previous tax returns or are expected to be included in future tax returns.
We report our collections and payments of excise taxes on a gross basis. Gas and electric
distribution revenues include the collections of excise taxes, while operating taxes include the
related expenses, For the twelve months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 excise taxes coliected
and paid were $117.4 million and $78.9 million, respectively. FExcise taxes associated with
KeySpan’s operations are reflected form the date of acquisition — August 24, 2007,

13. Derivatives

We employ derivative instraments to hedge a portion of our exposure to commodity price risk,
interest rate risk and weather fluctuations. Whenever hedge positions are in effect, we are
exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counter-parties to derivative contracts,
as well as nonperformance by the counter-parties of the transactions against which they are
hedged. We believe that the credit risk related to the futures, options and swap instruments is no
greater than that associated with the primary commodity contracts which they hedge.

Firm Sales Derivatives Instruments — Regulated Utilitles, We use derivative financial
instruments to reduce cash flow variability associated with the purchase price for a portion of
future natural gas and clectricity purchases associated with our gas and electric distribution
operations. Our strategy is to minimize fluctuations in firm gas and electricity sales prices to our
regulated customers. The accounting for these derivative instruments is subject to SFAS 71,
“Accounting for Certain Types of Regulation.” Therefore, the fair value of these derivatives is
recorded as current or deferred assets and liabilities, with offsetting positions recorded as
regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Gains or losses on
the settlement of these contracts are initially deferred and then refunded to or collected from our
firm gas sales customers consistent with regulatory requirements,

Physically-Settled Commodity Derivative Instruments. Certain of our contracts for the physical
purchase of natural gas and certain power supply contracts were assessed as no longer being
exempt from the requirements of SFAS 133 as normal purchases. SFAS 133 “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS 149, “Amendment of
Statement 133 Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (collectively, SFAS 133), As
such, these contracts are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at fair market value.
However, since such contracts were executed for regulated utility customers, and pursuant to the
requirements of SFAS 71, changes in the fair market value of these contracts are recorded as a
regulatory asset or regulatory Hability on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Financially-Settled Commodity Derivative Instruments. We employ derivative financial
instruments, such as futures, options and swaps, for the purpose of hedging the cash flow
variability associated with forecasted purchases and sales of various energy-related commadities.
All such derivative instruments are accounted for pursuant to the requirements of SFAS 133,
With respect to those commodity derivative instraments that are designated and accounted for as
cash flow hedges, the effective portion of periodic changes in the fair market value of cash flow
hedges is recorded as accumulated other comprehensive income on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, while the ineffective portion of such changes in fair value is recognized in earnings.
Unrealized gains and losses (on such cash flow hedges) that are recorded as accumulated other
comprehensive income are subsequently reclassified into earnings concurrent when hedged
transactions impact earnings. With respect to those commodity derivative instruments that are
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not designated as hedging instruments, such derivatives are accounted for on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at fair value, with all changes in fair value reported in earnings.

Interest Rate Derivative Instruments. We continually assess the cost relationship between fixed
and variable rate debt. Consistent with our objective to minimize our cost of capital, we
periodically enter into hedging transactions that effectively convert the terms of underlying debt
obligations from fixed to variable or variable to fixed, Payments made or received on these
derivative contracts are recognized as an adjustment 10 interest expense as incurred. Hedging
transactions that effectively convert the terms of underlying debt obligations from fixed to
variable are designated and accounted for as fair-value hedges pursuant to the requirements of
SIFAS 133. Hedging transactions that effectively convert the terms of underlying debt obligations
from variable to fixed are considered cash flow hedges,

14. Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is the change in the equity of a company, not inciuding those changes
that result from sharcholder transactions. While the primary component of comprehensive income
is reported as net income or loss, the other components of comprehensive income relate to changes
in SFAS 158, “Employets’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Postretirement Plans,”
deferred gains and losses associated with hedging activity, and unrealized gains and losses
associated with certain investments held as available for sale (See Note D “Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss)”).

15, Recent Accounting

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 161 “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities.” This Statement amends and expands the disclosure requirements of’ SFAS
133 with the intent to provide users of financial statements with an enhanced understanding of
{a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments; (b) how derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for; and (¢) how derivative instruments and related hedged
items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This Statement
requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative
disclosures about fair value amounts of and gains and losses of derivative instruments and
disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative agreements, This Statement
became effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning
after November 15, 2008. NGUSA adopied the new disclosure requirements for the March 31,
2009 and 2008 reporting periods. This Statement had no impact on results of operations,
financial position or cash flows. (See Note E “Derivative Contracts and Fair Value
Measurements” for the new disclosures)

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159 “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities.,” This statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial
instraments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at
fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the
opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and
liabilitics differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. This
statement requires a business entity to report unrealized gains and losses on items for which the
fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. An entity may
decide whether to clect the fair value option for each eligible item on its election date, subject to
certain requirements described in the statement. This statement became effective as of the
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beginning of each reporting entity’s first fiscal year that begins afier November 15, 2007, The
Company has not clected the fair value method.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141R “Business Combinations,” The objective of
SFFAS 141R is to improve the relevance and comparability of the financial information that a
reporting entity provides in its financial reports about a business combination and its effects.
This Statement establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer recognizes and
measures the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest
in the acquiree; recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in business combination; and
determines what information to disclose. This Statement shall be applied prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008, This Statement has no impact
on the Company’s current results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 160 “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements” — an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin 51 “Consolidated
Financial Statements.” The objective of SFAS 160 is to improve the relevance, comparability
and transparency of the financial information that a reporting entity provides in its consolidated
financial statements by establishing accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 became effective
for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15,
2008. The adoption of SFAS 160 is not expected to have a material impact on the company’s
results of operations, cash flows or financial position,

On September 15, 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157 “Fair Value Measurements.” This statement
defines fair value, cstablishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted
accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value. SFAS 157 expands the
disclosures about the use of fair value 10 measure assets and labilitics in interim and annual
periods subsequent to initial recognition. The disclosures focus on the inputs used to measure fair
value, the recurring fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs and the effect
of the measurement on earnings (or changes in net assets) for the period. The guidance in SFAS
157 also applies for derivatives and other financial instruments measured at fair value under
Statement 133 at initial recognition and in all subsequent periods. This Statement is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years.
The adoption of SFAS 157 had no impact on the Company’s results of operations financial
position or cash flow (See Note E “Derivatives and Fair Value Measurements” for the new
disclosures)

16, Reclassificafions

Certain amounts from prior years have been reclassified on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements to conform to the fiscal 2009 presentation. Additionally, the Company made
the following classification adjustments as of the ycar ended March 31, 2008. In order to
recognize the fact that commodity hedging relationship costs will be recovered from rate payers
in futures periods, such costs are now classified as regulatory assets and liabilities rather than as
other comprehensive income. Other immaterial adjustments, including the proper classification
of preferred stock dividends within net income have also been made.




17. Equity Investments and Qther

Certain subsidiaries own as their principal assets, investments (including goodwill), representing
ownership interests of 50% or less in energy-related businesses that are accounted for under the
equity method. None of these current investments are publicly traded. Additionally, the
Company has corporate assets recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet representing funds
designated for Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans. These funds are primarily invested in
corporate owned life insurance policies. The Company records changes in the value of these
assets in accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin 85-4 “Accounting for the Purchase of Life
Insurance.” As such, increases and decreases in the value of these assets are recorded through
carnings in the Consolidated Statement of Income - other income and (deductions) concurrent
with the change in the value of the underlying assets.

18. Emission allowance eredif: The US Environmental Protection Agency issued the Clean Air
Interstate Rule (CAIR) which was intended to permanently cap emission of sulfur dioxide (SO2)
and nitrogen oxide (NOx) in 28 castern states and the District of Columbia. The CAIR
requirements were supplemental to the existing emission reductions required under the Clean Air
Act. The Company has an emission allowance credit of $47.9 million and $288.1 million at
March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which is recorded in materials and supplies on the
consolidated balance sheet. (See Note L “Acquisitions” for further discussion on emission
allowance credit) On a quarterly basis, the emission allowance credit is reviewed for impairment
at the balance sheet date the allowance could have been traded or sold in an active market. The
existence of the market and the ability (o realize the recorded value of the allowances as of
period end demonstrates that no impairment was necessary.

NOTE B - RATE AND REGULATORY

The Company applies the provisions of the SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for Certain Types of
Regulation,” which requires regulated entities, in appropriate circumstances, to establish
regulatory assets or liabilities, and thereby defer the income statement impact of certain charges
or revenues because they are expected to be collected or refunded through future customer
billings.

The Company is earning a return on a significant number of regulatory assets. Additionally, for
those regnlatory items for which cash expenditures have been made or for which cash has been
collected, the Company records an appropriate amount of carrying charges. For regulatory items
in which cash has not been paid or received, carrying charges are not recorded. We anticipate
recovering or refunding those items in our utility rates concurrently with future cash
expenditures or collections. If recovery or refund is not concurrent with cash expenditures or
collections, the Company will record the appropriate level of carrying charges.

Management believes its rates are based on the Company’s costs and investments and it should
continue to apply the provisions of SFAS 71. If the Company could no longer apply SFAS 71,
the resulting charge would be material to the Company’s reported financial condition and results
of operations. The following table details the various categories of regulatory assets and
Habilities:




(in millions Ofd()”ﬂfS) March 31,
2009 2008

Regulatory assets included in accounts receivable: ‘
Rate adjustment mechanisms $ 59.2 § 1068
Current portion of regulatory assets.
Derivative and swayp contracts J28.5 76.3
Purchase power obligations (Note A. 13) 4.0 3.1
Pension and post-retirement benefit plans 89.3 39.6
Yankee nuclear decommissioning costs 26.2 31.8
Merger rate plan stranded costs 502.5 410.9
Other 614 54,1

1,011,9 615.8
Current portion of regulatory liabilities:
Derivative and swap contracts (46.6) {(171.4)
Rate adjustment mechanisms (166.2) {140.2)
Other {48.8) (65.2)

{261.0) (376.8)
Total net miscellaneous regulatory assets (liabilities) current 810.1 345.8
Regulatory assefs:
Stranded costs 981.0 1,490.1
Purchase power obligations 20.6 1164
Derivative and swap contracls 215 1474
Regulatory tax asset 234.6 162.8
Delerred environmental restoration costs 1,706.2 1,500.2
Pension and post-retirement benefit plans 1,908.7 1,773.3
Yankee nuclear decommissioning costs 80,9 91.9
Loss on reacquired debt 51.6 615
Long-term portion of standard offer under-recovery 534 513
Storm cost recoveries 210.3 -
Other 322.0 187.9

5,800.8 5,582.8
Regulatory liabilities:
Removal costs recovered (Note A, 9) (1,392.2) (1,305.9)
Stranded costs and CTC related (181.9) {156.6)
Pension and post-retirement plans fair value deferred gain (207.9) (385.7)
Interest saving deferral (92.5) (92.5)
Environmental response fund and insurance recoveries {97.2} (118.5)
Storin costs reserve (21.4) 44.1)
Derivative instruments (9.3} {113.4)
Other (609,2) (389.2)

(2,611.6) (2,605.9)

Total net miscelaneous regulatory assets non-current 3,189.2 2,976.9
Net miscellaneous regulatory assets §  3,9993 5 33227
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Stranded costs: Certain regulatory assets, referred to as stranded costs, resulted from major
fundamental changes occurring in the public utility industry, most notably the divestiture of
generation assets pursuant to deregulation. Under deregulation, the generation segment of the
utility business was opened to competition in that consumers could choose their generation
supplier. Public utilities continued to control the transmission and distribution of electricity and
were encouraged to dispose of generation assets such as power plants. The net unrecovered costs
from the sale of these generation assets, along with the costs to terminate, restate or amend
existing purchase power contracts were deferred for recovery in rates over future periods. A
large portion of these stranded costs are being recovered through a special rate being charged to
customers. Similarly, the recovery of costs outside of customer rate recovery, but that
nevertheless relate to the former gencration business, are credited back 1o customers as well to
offset stranded costs. This mechanism is called the Contract Termination Charge and (or) the
Competitive Transition Charge (in both cases, these charges are called the CTC).

Management belicves that future cash flows from charges for electric service under existing rate
plans, including the CTC, will be sufficient to recover the Company’s clectric regulatory assets
over the planned amortization period. This assumes that there will be no unforeseen reduction in
demand and no bypass of the CTC or exit fees.

Storm costs: On December 11 and 12, 2008, a significant ice storm in Upstate New York,
Massachusetts and New Hampshire which affected portions of Niagara Mohawk, Mass Electric
and Granite State’s service territories, severely damaging parts of the electric distribution system
and causing numerous power outages. At its peak on December {2, there were approximately 0.5
million customers without service. Certain storm restoration costs may be included in the
deferral account for recovery. The Company is allowed to recover from customers the costs of
major storms in which the costs and (or) number of customers affected exceed certain specific
thresholds as specified in various rate orders, The Company recorded a deferral of $110.2
million related to the December storm. At March 31, 2009, $210.3 million was the total storm
cost recoveries recorded in the regulatory assets.

Rate adjustment mechanism: The revenue requirements of the Company’s regulated
subsidiaries are set by various state public utility commission in the jurisdictions that the
Company operates as the amount cach company will need to (1) recover its prudently incurred
capital and operating costs and (2) earn an agreed (o rate of returtt on equity. A rate adjustment
mechanism that certain subsidiaries have periodically adjusts clectric rates, up or down, to
account for differences between revenues the companies have been authorized to recover and the
revenues the company has actually received. The mechanism covers the fixed costs of
distributing electricity including costs for purchased-power costs from electric power generating
companies.

Purchased power obligations: In conjunction with the Company’s divestiture of its generating
business, the Company accrued obligations related to certain purchased power contracts. The
Company makes fixed monthly payments to the suppliers or it has made lump sum payments to
effectively terminate a number of purchase power contracts. These payments are recorded as
regulatory assets and are amortized as they are recovered from customers,

Deferred environmental restoration costs: This regulatory asset represents deferred costs
associated with the Company’s share of the estimated costs to investigate and perform certain
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remediation activities at hazardous waste sites with which it may be associated. The Company’s
rate plans provide for specific rate allowances for these costs, with variances deferred for future
recovery or pass-back to customers, The Company believes future costs, beyond the expiration
of current rate plans, will continue to be recovered through rates.

Yankee nuclear decommissioning costs: This regulatory asset represents the estimated future
decommissioning billings from a group of three nuclear generating utilities (See Note C
“Commitments and Contingencies™). Under settlement agreements, the Company is permitted to
recover prudently incurred decommissioning costs through CTCs,

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans: Costs of the Company’s pension and
postretirement benefits plans over amounts reflected in rates are deferred to a regulatory asset 1o
be recovered in a future period. This regulatory asset includes the deferral of the fair value
adjustments to the pension and postretirement benefits plans other than pensions, The Company
has also recorded a regulatory asset as an offset to its SFAS No. 158 “Employers’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretivement Plans” liability. As the Company has
recovery on pension liability on a dollar for dollar basis, it is reasonable that the Company’s
regulatory assets for pension expenses will be equal to the SFAS No. 158 liability on the balance
sheet, Therefore, there will be no impact on the income statement as the revenues per recovery
will match the underlying pension and other postretirement benefit expenses.

Regulatory Tax Asset: The regulatory tax asset represents the expected future recovery {rom
ratepayers of the tax consequences of temporary differences between the recorded book basis
and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. This amount is primarily timing differences related to
depreciation. These amounts are recovered and amortized as the related temporary differences
reverse.

Regulatory Developments

Granite State

On July 12, 2007, the NHPUC approved a settlement agreement between Granite State, the Staff
of the NIHHPUC and the New Hampshire Office of Consumer Advocate. Among other things, the
2007 Settlement provided for a $2.2 million reduction in Granite State's distribution rates in two
steps: the first $1,1 million reduction became effective August 11, 2007 and the second $1.1
million reduction became effective January 1, 2008, The 2007 Settlement also contains a
distribution rate plan spanning 5 years effective January 1, 2008 (Rate Plan). During the Rate
Plan, distribution rates are frozen except for rate adjustments in the event of certain
uncontrollable exogenous events and moderate annual rate adjustments related to specific
Reliability Enhancement and Vegetation Management Plans (REP/VMP). The Rate Plan also
includes an earnings sharing mechanism based on an imputed capital structure of 50% debt and
50% cquity and a return on equity (ROE) of 11%. Earnings above 11% ROE are shared equally
between customers and Granite State. The Rate Plan also establishes a storm contingency fund
and customer service commitments. On June 27, 2008 the NHPUC approved Granite State’s first
annual REP/VMP rate adjustment of $0.2 million effective July 1, 2008,

Mass Electric and Nantucket Electric
Rates for services rendered by Mass Electric are the same as for Nantucket Electric. In March
2000, the MADPU approved a long-term rate plan for Mass Electric and Nantucket Electric,
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which became effective on May 1, 2000, During the period from March 1, 2005 through
December 31, 2009, the Rate Index Period, distribution rates were adjusted annually, based upon
the movement of a distribution index rate (in cents per kilowatt-hour) of similarly unbundled
distribution utilities in New England, New York, Pennsylvania and New Jersey. Mass Electric
and Nantucket Electric implemented increases in distribution rates pursuant to this mechanism of
1.59%, 1.90% and 1.54% effective March 1, 2007, 2008, and 2009, respectively, The rate plan
also has included provisions for recovery of major storm costs and recovery or passback to
customers for exogenous events.

On May 15, 2009, Mass Electric and Nantucket Electric jointly filed a base rate case, which they
anticipate the MADPU will act upon for rates effective January 1, 2010. This rate case filing
seeks approval of an increase in distribution revenue of approximately $111.3 million,
Approximately $30.1 million of this amount relates to storm cost recovery. The filing proposes
to continue to include an allowance in rates to replenish the storm fund balance to address future
storms. As required by the MADPU, the filing includes a rate decoupling proposal. The filing
also includes proposals for the reconciliation of commodity-related bad debt and pension costs,
In addition, the filing includes new proposals for other fully reconciling adjustments for other
expenses, including capital additions. Mass Electric and Nantucket Electric cannot predict the
outcome of this proceeding as hearings and replied briefs are still in process.

Mass Electric had a service quality plan in place in 2006 that provided for penalties and
incentives for various service quality metrics, including without limitation, the frequency and
duration of oufages. In 2006, Mass Electric did not meet the frequency and duration metrics.
These results included outages during four severe weather events during 2006, Mass Electric
petitioned the MADPU for permission to exclude these four storms from its reliability metrics,
based on a provision in a MADPU order (August 17, 2000 order in D.T.E. 99-84 at
31) allowing utilities to make a filing to seek relief from the imposition of service quality
penalties where Mass Electric believes that the imposition of a penalty is not warranted from the
specific facts of the situation. The MADPU issued an order on June 26, 2009 rejecting the
request to exclude the four storms. As a result, Mass Electric’s service quality penalty for 2006
is approximately $8 million which is reflected in the regulatory liabilities at March 31, 2009.

Mass Electric and Nantucket Electric provide energy efficiency initiatives for its customers
under a single combined program under the jurisdiction of the MADPU and the Massachusetts
Department of Energy Resources, The combined approved budget for calendar year 2008 is
$61.9 million, and an approved budget for calendar year 2009 is $85.3 million. Mass Electric and
Nantucket Electric obtain cosl recovery through cach company’s systems benefit charge. In
addition, Mass Electric and Nantucket Elcctric can earn performance incentives depending on
whether certain set goals are met, and are also entitled to seek recovery of lost base revenues,
that is, revenues reduced as a result of installed energy efficiency measures. Lost base revenues
may be recovered from a set point in time until the companies revenue decoupling proposal is
approved by the MADPU.

On May 13, 2009, Mass Electric petitioned MADPU for approval to issue, from time to time,

long term debt securities in an amount not to exceed $1.075 billion. The Company cannot
prediet the outcome of these proceedings.
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Narragansett Electric

In September 2004, the RIPUC approved a rate plan that reduced annual distribution rates
effective November 1, 2004 by $10.2 million and froze them at that level through 2009, On June
I, 2009, Narragansett filed for an increase in base distribution rates, which Narragansett
anticipates the RIPUC will act upon for rates effective March 1, 2010, This rate case filing secks
approval of an increase in distribution revenue of approximately $75.3 million. The filing
includes a rate decoupling proposal, along with proposals for the reconciliation of commodity-
related bad debi and pension costs. In addition, the filing includes new proposals for other fully
reconciling adjustments for other expenses, including capital additions. Narragansett cannot
predict the outcome of this proceeding,

On September 17, 2008, Narragansett, NEP, and Northeast Utilities jointly filed with FERC to
recover financial incentives for the New England East-West Solution (NEEWS), pursuant to
FERC’s Transmission Pricing Policy Order, Order No. 679, NEEWS, estimated to cost a total of
$2.1 billion, consists of a series of inter-related transmission upgrades identified in the New
England Regional System Plan and is being undertaken to address a number of reliability
problems in the tri-state area of Connecticut, Massachusetts, and Rhode Island.

Narragansett’s share of the NEEWS-related transmission investment is estimated to be $474
million and NEP’s share is estimated to be $160 million. Narraganseit is fully reimbursed for its
transmission revenue requirements on monthly basis by NEP through NEP’s Integrated Facilities
Agreement. Effective as of November 18, 2008, FERC granted for NEEWS (1) an incentive
ROE of 12.89% (125 basis points above the approved base ROE of 11.64%), (2) 100%
construction work in progress (CWIP) in rate base and (3) rccovery of plant abandoned for
reasons beyond the companies’ control. Parties opposing the NEEWS incentive have sought
rehearing of the FERC order,

Under Rhode Island law, Narragansett is allowed to recover all of its costs for commodity
service. Commodity service for customers not taking supply from a competitive supplier is
referred to as Standard Offer Service (SOS). In addition, there is a related service called Last
Resort Service, which has been provided to customers who left Standard Offer Service to obtain
supply from a competitive supplier and then returned to Narragansett for commodity service.
Standard offer Service has been supplied pursuant to several long term contracts that expire at
the end of 2009, Last Resort Service is provided under short term (less than one year) contracts.
In addition, Narragansetl is obligated to meet renewable energy standards for all supply. This can
be met by the purchase of renewable energy certificates. On April 29, 2009, Narragansett filed its
proposed Standard Offer Procurement Plan and its Renewable energy Standards (RES)
Procurement Plan, proposing plans for the acquisition of Standard Offer Service beginning
January 1, 2010, following the expiration of the existing long ferm contracts, Narragansett’s
plans include consideration of entering into long-term contracts for renewable energy resources,
which was directed by the Commission on March 31, 2009,

Narragansett continues to be authorized to recover all costs associated with procuring power for
its customers, all transmission costs, and costs charged by certain NGUSA affiliates, for stranded
costs associated with Narragansett’s former electric generation investments.

In August 2006, Narragansett completed the acquisition of the Rhode Island gas assets of
Southern Union Company. Pursuant to the Order approving the acquisition, Narragansett agreed
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to honor the provisions of a May 2002 rate settlement and committed fo file a new rate plan
within one year of the acquisition date. In November 2008, the RIPUC approved a $13.6 million
gas distribution rate increase. The rate increase includes a new rate for low-income customers
and increased recovery of commodity related bad debt expense. The RIPUC also approved a
10.5% allowed ROE based on an imputed equity ratio of 47.7%, a discrete funding mechanism
for an accelerated base-steel and cast-iron mains replacement program, and a full reconciliation
of pension and postretirement benefits other than pensions. The RIPUC approved the proposed
rate base, which was bare on forecasted additions to plant in service through the end of the rate
year, subject to subsequent adjustments to reflect any actual lower amount of plant in service.
The RIPUC denied Narragansett’s revenue decoupling proposal, indicating that full revenue
decoupling was not appropriate at this time.

On June 18, 2009, Narragansett petitioned the RIPUC for approval to issue, from time to time,
long term debt securities in an amount not to exceed $840 million. The Company cannot predict
the outcome of these proceedings.

New England Power

New England Regional Transmission Organization (RTO) and Rate Filing: NEP is a
participating transmission owner (PTO) in the RTO which commenced operations effective
February 1, 2005. The Independent System Operator for New England (ISO-NE) has been
authorized by PERC to exercise the operations and system planning functions required of RTOs
and is the independent regional transmission provider under the ISO-NE Open Access
Transmission Tariff (ISO-NE OATT). The ISO-NE OATT is designed to provide non-
discrimminatory open access transmission services over the transmission facilities of the PTOs and
recover their revenue requirements.

Effective on the RTO operations date of February 1, 2005, NEP’s wransmission rates began to
reflect a proposed base ROE of 12.8%, subject to refund, plus an additional 0.5% incentive
return on regional network service (RNS) rates that FERC approved in March 2004, An
additional 1.0% incentive adder was also applicable to new RNS transmission investment,
subject to refund, Approximately 70% of NEP’s transmission costs are recovered through RNS
rates,

NEP and the other NETOs participated in FERC proceedings to resolve outstanding ROE issues,
including base ROE and the proposed 1.0% ROE incentive for new iransmission investment. On
October 31, 2006, FERC issued an order establishing the ROE for the NETOs, including NEP, In
this order, FERC overturned the Administrative Law Judge initial decision and approved, over
the dissent of two Commissioners, the proposed 1.0% ROFE adder for all new transmission
investment approved through the regional system planning process as an incentive to build new
transmission infrastructure. The resulting ROE varied depending on whether costs are recovered
through RNS rates or local network service (LNS) rates, and whether the costs are for existing or
new facilities. For the locked-in period (February 2005 to October 2006), the resulting ROEs
were 10.7% (including a 0.5% RTO participation adder) for recovery of existing transmission
through RNS rates; 11.7% ({including 0.5% and 1.0% adders) for new transmission costs
recovered through RNS; and 10.2% (base¢ ROE only) for LNS. For the prospective period
beginning November 1, 2006, those ROEs increased to 11.4%, 12.4% and 10.9% respectively as
a result of a FERC adjustment to reflect updated bond data. Overall, the ROEs approved by
FERC represent an increase from NEP’s last authorized ROE of 10.25%.
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The NETOs and opposing patties to the NETOs requested rehearing of various aspects of the
Commission’s order. On March 24, 2008, FERC issued an order on rehearing increasing NEP’s
base ROE for all classes of transmission plant by 24 basis points retroactive to February 1, 2005,
The Commission also limited the 1.0% ROE adder it had previously granted for new
transmission investment approved under the regional system planning process so that it only
applies to new transmission plant placed in service on or before December 31, 2008, The
Commission’s order also indicated that any future (ransmission investnent incentives after 2008
must be sought through initiating an incentive proposal under Section 205 of the Federal Power
Act pursuant to the Commission’s Order No. 679 Transmission Pricing Policy.

In December 2008, opposing partics in the underlying FERC proceeding filed appeals of the
Commission’s orders with the US Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit arguing
that the Commission’s approval of the 1.0% ROE adder was unjustified. The NETOs, including
NEP, filed their brief with the Court on March 23, 2009. The filing of the briefs was completed
in May 2009, Oral arguments have not yet been scheduled,

Niagara Mohawk

Third CTC reset and Deferral Account filings: The biannual deferral account filing included in
the third CTC reset was made on August 1, 2007 for deferral balances as of June 30, 2007 and
projected deferrals through December 31, 2009, Any differences in the final deferral from
balances authorized to be reflected in rates and the approved recovery level would be reflected in
the next CTC reset filing and resulting rates to customers that take effect after 2009. A NYPSC
order establishing the amount of deferral account recovery that will be reflected in the rates
during 2008-2009 was approved on December 17, 2007 at $124 million per calendar year, This
represents a reduction in rates charged to customers of $76 million per year from the $200
million per year previously being collected under rates approved in the second CTC reset
proceeding,

On October 22, 2007, Niagara Mohawk made a compliance filing with the NYPSC regarding the
implementation of the Follow-on Merger Credit associated with the acquisition by National Grid
ple of KeySpan. In its compliance filing, Niagara Mohawk calculated the share of the KeySpan
Follow-on Merger savings allocable to Niagara Mohawk for the period from September 2007
through December 2011 to be approximately $40 million. Niagara Mohawk subsequently agreed,
in its comments filed in the Third CTC Reset proceeding on October 31, 2007, to lower rates
submitted in its August 1, 2007 CTC Reset filing to reflect a proposal by the parties in that
proceeding to apply the KeySpan Follow-on Merger Credit to Niagara Mohawk’s electric
customers over a two year period instead of over the four remaining years of the Merger Rate
Plan (MRP), which was approved by the NYPSC in December 2007. On May 29, 2008, the
NYPSC issued its decision with respect to Niagara Mohawk's October 22, 2007 compliance
filing rejecting Niagara Mohawk’s proposed calculation and requiring a Follow-on Merger
Credit of $52 million for the August 24, 2007 through December 2011 period. On June 30, 2008,
Niagara Mohawk filed a petition for rehearing of the May 29, 2008 order from the NYPSC. The
NYPSC denied the rehearing petition in an Order dated February 24, 2009, holding that its May
2008 Order was consistent with the explicit language of the MRP,

The NYPSC has also issued a notice on June 25, 2008 seeking additional comment on two
Follow-on Merger savings issues that were not addressed in the compliance filing of QOctober 22,
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2007. In the notice, the NYPSC asked for comments on Department of Public Service Staff*s
(Staff) position with respect to these two issues that would result in Niagara Mohawk crediting
an additional $35 million of synergy savings to electric and gas customers. Niagara Mohawk
disagrees with the Staff’s position and on August 4, 2008 filed comments in response. On May
26, 2009, a settlement conference was held with the Staff and other parties to discuss
negotiations. The settlement conference ended without an agreement, Niagara Mohawk expects
the NYPSC’s decision on this matter to be made by the end of the calendar year 2009,

Service Quality Penalties: In connection with its MRP and Gas Rate Plan Joint Proposal (see
below), Niagara Mohawk is subject to maintaining certain service quality standards. Service
quality measures focus on eleven categorics including safety targets related to gas operations,
electric reliability measures related to outages, residential and business customer satisfaction,
meter reads, customer call response times, and administration of the Low-Income Customer
Assistance Program. If a prescribed standard is not satisfied, Niagara Mohawk may incur a
penalty, with the penalty amount applied as a credit or refund to customers.

The MRP includes provisions related to frequency and duration of outages that causes the annual
$4.4 million penalty associated with these standards to be doubled under certain circumstances
when penalties have been incurred in the current year and two of the last four years. In calendar
year 2006, Niagara Mohawk incurred a $4.4 million penalty related to outage frequency, which it
recorded in fiscal year 2007, Similar penalties were incurred in the two prior years. Based on this
performance and consistent with the terms of the MRP, the NYPSC on November 7, 2007
doubled the 2006 penalty associated with outage frequency to $8.8 million per year, In
September 2007, the NYPSC also modified the MRP, in the context of the KeySpan merger
proceeding, to add an additional incremental $4.4 million penalty exposure for each consecutive
year Niagara Mohawk misses the target for a doubled penalty. This additional incremental
penalty exposure resulted in a $13.2 mitlion penalty for missing the outage frequency target for
2007. For the twelve months ended March 31, 2008, Niagara Mohawk recorded service quality
penalties of $14.2 million. In addition, the (Gas Rate Plan Joint Proposal for Niagara Mohawk’s
gas rates provides for higher negative revenue adjustments in connection with certain service
quality perfortance measures. For the twelve months ended March 31, 2009, Niagara Mohawk
has recorded service quality penalty expenses of approximately $0.5 million,

Asset Condition and Capital Investment Plan: On Ociober 22, 2007, Niagara Mohawk filed
with the NYPSC reports on its asset condition and capital investment plan for its electric
transmission and distribution system. Niagara Mohawk’s plan involves significant investment in
capital improvements over the projections initially included in its MRP. On August 15, 2008, the
NYPSC issued its order on the compliance filing regarding the asset condition and capital
investment plan. The NYPSC affirmed Niagara Mohawk’s need to invest a minimuin of $1.4
billion during this five year period and stated that further projects and investments “appear to be
justified” from our $2.3 billion plan with the possibility of further expansion over time.

On December 21, 2007, Niagara Mohawk filed with the NYPSC a Petition for Special
Ratemaking seeking authorization to defer for later rate recovery 50% of the revenue
requirement impact during calendar year 2008 of specified capifal programs and operating
expenses that are directly associated with these programs, In the order approving the KeySpan
Acquisition, the NYPSC had found that the rate impacts associated with certain incremental
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investments during the remaining period of the MRP would be limited to 50% of the total rate
impact as ultimately determined by the NYPSC,

On September 3, 2008, the NYPSC issued its order on Niagara Mohawk’s Petition for Special
Ratemaking. The NYPSC stated that NGUSA’s investment program constituted a major
program, Thus, investment could “conceptually” be considered incremental to the rate plan and
therefore eligible for deferral recovery, The NYPSC ordered adoption of a previous
recomendation made by the Staff finding that such expenditures gualify for deferral under the
2001 MRP. However, the NYPSC also agreed with the Staff that the petition was premature and
ordered Niagara Mohawk to supplement its petition with actual expense information once results
for calendar year 2008 become known. Niagara Mohawk was directed to show in its
supplemental filing that Niagara Mohawk will not over earn in 2008 after the deferrals are
allowed, that the expenditures on which the deferrals are based are incremental to what was
reflected in the merger joint proposal forecast, that such expenditures have been offset by all
relevant cost savings and related benefits, and to the extent that actual expenditures for 2008
differed from amounts in the budgets that were previously filed with the NYPSC, that the basis
for such differences be explained. Finally, the NYPSC ordered a schedule of reporting
requirements on the investment program which the Niagara Mohawk has been working with the
NYPSC to develop. Niagara Mohawk has filed for authority to defer 2008 actual capital
expenditures in April 2009, Niagara Mohawk plans to request deferral recovery of 50% of the
annual revenue requirement associated with certain capital investments and associated operating
expenses after each calendar year through the end of 2011 as allowed by the NYPSC order.

Financigl Protections: Niagara Mohawk made a filing on November 19, 2007 proposing certain
financial protections for Niagara Mohawk as required by the NYPSC in the order approving the
KeySpan Acquisition and made an additional filing with the NYPSC regarding these protections,
The NYPSC adopted the protections in March 2008 which provide, among other things, for
restrictions on the payment of common dividends if certain credit ratings are not maintained by
Niagara Mohawk or National Grid ple; credits to Niagara Mohawk’s deferral account of any
incremental increase in interest expense due to a decline in Niagara Mohawk’s bond rating, a
prohibition with respect to certain types of cross-default provisions; and the implementation of a
class of preferred stock having one sharc (the Golden Share), subordinate to any existing
preferred stock, the holder of which would have voting rights that limit Niagara Mohawk’s right
to commence any voluntary bankruptey, liquidation, receivership or similar procceding without
the consent of the holder of such share of stock. Niagara Mohawk has committed to seek
authority from the NYPSC to establish the Golden Share within six weeks of the NYPSC's
approval of the petition of certain subsidiaries of KeySpan for the establishment of their
respective Golden Shares as required by the NYPSC.

Gas Rate Plan Joint Proposal: Niagara Mohawk filed with the NYPSC on May 23, 2008 for a
$95 million rate increase in natural gas delivery rafes. Niagara Mohawk had not had a gas
delivery ratc increase since 1996. The filing included a revenue decoupling proposal, a gas
marketing program, a new rate for low-income customers and expanded capital infrastructure
investments. The proposed $95 million rate increase included recovery of $11 million of costs
associated with an energy efficiency program. Subsequently, the NYPSC transferred the review
of the energy efficiency program proposal and the associated cost recovery to a separate.
proceeding. The filing further reflected an 11% return on equity and a 50% debt and 50% equity
capital structure,
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On October 27, 2008, the NYPSC Staff recommended that the increase be reduced to $35
million based in part on allowances of 9.68% for return on equity and 41,7% for the equity ratio.
In submitting its rebuttal on November 17, 2008, Niagara Mohawk accepted certain of the Staff’s
adjustments which when combined with other updated information, reduced Niagara Mohawk’s
requested rate relief to $72 million. Evidentiary hearings concluded in December 2008, after
which Niagara Mohawk, Staff and other parties engaged in settlement discussions. On February
13, 2009, a joint proposal reflecting a settlement of the rate filing among Niagara Mohawk, Staff,
the U.8. Department of Defense, a large customer group and a group of energy marketers was
filed with the NYPSC. The joint proposal provides for a two-year rate plan, with an annual
increase of $39.4 million in the first year and specific, incremental adjustments in the second
year to reflect changes in such costs as post-retirement benefit plans other than pensions and
environmental site investigation and remediation costs. Among other deferral mechanisms, the
joint proposal permits Niagara Mohawk to true up to the actual cost of new long-term debt,
which will protect Niagara Mohawk from the volatility of financial markets and assure that
customners pay no more than the actual cost of long-term debt. The Joint Proposal provides for a
10.2% return on equity and a 43.7% equity ratio, and an earnings-sharing mechanism that
requires Niagara Mohawk to share earnings with customers to the extent its return on cquity
exceeds 11.35%. The Joint Proposal also includes a revenue decoupling mechanism, increased
negative revenue adjusiments for failure to meet certain service quality performance metrics and
a commodity-related bad debt recovery mechanism that adjusts for fluctuations in commeodity
prices,

The Joint Proposal was approved as is by the NYPSC session and an Order was issued on May
15, 2009 and the new rates went into cffect on May 20, 2009. The Order also authorized Niagara
Mohawk to implement a surcharge so that it could begin recovering the Temporary State Energy
and Utility Service Conservation Assessment on May 20, 2009.

Transmission Rate Case: In February 2008, Niagara Mohawk filed with FERC a formula
transmission rate for customers that take service under the New York Independent System
Operater (NYISO) tariff. The formula was projected to increase revenues by $9.6 million, or
72% of the NYISO tariff, In July 2008, FERC issued an order accepting the proposed formula
rate and approved a 50 basis point incentive return on equity applicable to all transmission
facilities. This decision marked the first formula rate for a (private) transmission owner in New
York. The rate took effect on October 1 2008 subject to refund, The FERC directed hearing and
settlement judge proceedings to resolve the remaining contested issues in the proceeding. On
April 6, 2009, Niagara Mohawk filed a settlement agreement which, if accepted by the NYPSC,
would resolve all issues in the proceeding. The formula is projected to increase annual revenue
by approximately $7.9 million. The settlement provides for an authorized return on equity of
11.5%, including any incentive return. The proposed effective date for the settlement is January
30, 2009 with a phase in of the settlement rate over the period from January 30 through June 30.
In July 2009, Niagara Mohawk refunded to customers a total of $7.1 million, inclusive of FERC
required interest, for amounts collected in excess of the settlement rates for the period of October
2008 through June 2009. The increase in revenues resulting from the new formula rate, which
would be charged to wholesale transmission customers, will be credited back to retail electric
distribution customers through the Transmission Revenue Adjustment Clause (TRAC)
mechanism.




Brooklyn Union

Brooklyn Union is currently subiect to a five year rate plan through December 2012, The rate
plan arose from the rate filing made in the context of the National Grid merger proceeding, Base
delivery rates were increased $5 million annually in rate years one through rate year five.
However, the increase in base delivery rates will be deferred and used to offset future increases
in environmental investigation and remediation costs. The plan is based on an allowed return on
equity of 9.6%. Cumulative annual earnings above 10.6% (including a 10 basis point incentive
for meeting energy efficiency targets to be established) will be shared with customers. There are
various reconciliation mechanisms that permit Brooklyn Union to fully or partially true up to
established thresholds for such items as real property, special franchise taxes and site
investigation and remediation costs. In the case of non growth-related capital, Brooklyn Union
must return unspent funds below established targets to customers, but may not recover
overspending. Brooklyn Union is permitted to reconcile its actual pension and other post-
employment benefit expense to the amount allowed in rates and is subject to affiliate rules and
various financial protections for the terms of the rate plans.

KeySpan Gas East

KeySpan Gas East is currently subject to a five year rate plan through December 2012. The rate
plan arose from the rate filing made in the context of the National Grid merger proceeding. Base
delivery rates were increased by $60 million for on January 1, 2008, In rate years two through
five, base delivery rates will be increased by $10 million. However, the increase in delivery rates
in years two through five will be deferred and used to offset future increases in environmental
investigation and remediation costs. The plan is based on an allowed return on equity of 9.6%.
Cumulative annual earnings above 10.6% (including a 10 basis point incentive for meeting
energy efficiency targets to be established) will be shared with customers. There are various
reconciliation mechanisms that permit KeySpan Gas East to fully or partially true up to
established thresholds for such items as real property taxes, special franchise taxes and site
investigation and remediation costs. In the case of non growth-related capital, KeySpan Gas East
must return unspent funds below established targets to customers, but may not recover
overspending, KeySpan Gas East is permitted to reconcile its actual pension and other post-
employment benefit expense to the amount allowed in rates and is subject to affiliate rules and
various financial protections for the terms of the rate plans,

Boston Gas

Boston Gas currently has a long term rate plan in place to 2013, unless terminated earlier, Boston
(3as has notified the MADPU of its intent to file a base rate case in 2010. Under the long term
rate plan, rates are adjusted each year with the approval of the MADPU based on a GDP-based
price cap formula, On November 1, 2008, the MADPU approved a base rate increase of $6.5
million under the rate plan. In addition, an increase of $26.0 million in the local distribution
adjustment clause was approved to recover pension and other postretirement costs. The MADPU
also approved a true-up mechanism for pension and other postretirement benefit costs under
which variations between actual pension and other postretirement benefit costs and amounts used
to establish rates are deferred and collected from or refunded to customers in subsequent periods.
This true-up mechanism allows for carrying charges on deferred assets and liabilities at Boston
Gas are weighted-average cost of capital. There is also an eamings sharing mechanism. If the
return on equity (ROE) is greater than 14.2%, customers share 25% of the excess gain,
Conversely, if the ROE is lower than 6.2%, customers bear 25% of the loss,
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On November 17, 2008, the Boston Gas, Colonial Gas and Essex Gas filed 8 combined request
for approval of a three year gas portfolio optimization agreement with ConocoPhillips. An order
was issued on April 1, 2009 approving the agreement, including proposed margin sharing, but
flimiting the term to a period of one year. Under the terms of the confidential agreement,
customers will receive a minimum guaranteed payment plus a share of any revenues generated
above the guarantee amount,

Colonial Gas

Colonial Gas is subject to a MADPU imposed 10 year rate freeze that will expire in September
2009. Current rates will remain in effect unless and until a change in base rates is requested and
approved by the MADPU. Colonial has notified the MADPU of its intent to file a base rate case
in 2010.

EnergyNorth

On February 23, 2008, EnergyNorth, filed for a $10 million rate increase in natural gas delivery
rates with the NHPUC, This filing represents the first delivery rate increase since 1992 and
reflected an 11.5% retwn on equity and a 50/50 debt to equity capital structure. The filing
enabled temporary gas delivery rates to go into effect, subject to refund, in late August 2008,
with the final approved gas delivery rate increase expected in February 2009. In May 2009, the
NHPUC approved a partial settlement reached between EnergyNorth, the Staff of the NHPUC,
and other parties that resolved all issues related to the case except for the determination of the
allowed return on equity, The Commission also ordered that the allowed ROE be 9.54%. The
result of the Commission Order is an increase in gas distribution rates of $5.5 million. On June
29, 2009, EnergyNorth filed a motion for reconsideration of the Commissions determination of
an allowed ROE of 9.54%. The NHPUC has not issued an order in response to the motion.

Temporary State Assessment Pursuant to PSL Section 18-a(6): In June 2009, Niagara
Mohawk, KeySpan Gas East, and Brooklyn Union made a compliance filing with the NYPSC
regarding the implementation of the Temporary State Energy & Utility Conservation Assessment
per §18-a(6) of the New York Public Service Laws of 2009. The combined General &
Temporary Conservation assessment will equal two percent of the prior calendar year's gross
operating revenues derived from intra-state utility operations, including ESCO revenues. Per
Order dated June 19, 2009, the NYPSC authorized recovery of the revenues required for
payment of the Temporary State Assessment, including carmying charges, subject to
reconciliation over five years, July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014, In its initial compliance
filing, the Company calculated the incremental assessment to be collected from customers,
including carrying charges and an allowance for uncollectible amounts, to be approximately
$100 million for the period from July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010. On July 1, 2009 the
Company filed an alternative proposal, whereas the Company would recover the incremental
assessment over a fiscal year basis, with a compressed first-year period from May 20, 2009
through March 31, 2010. An Order in regards to both the compliance and alternative filings is
outstanding,

Green Communities Act

On July 2, 2008, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts enacted into law comprehensive
legislation regarding energy policy and the environment. Entitled the Green Communities Act,
this legislation is broad, mandating large scale and innovative ideas for implementing renewable
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energy, alternative energy, and energy efficiency throughout the Commonwealth. The legislation
sets forth numerous requirements for gas and electric utilities. Provisions of the law that will
affect Mass Electric, Nantucket Electric, Boston Gas and Colonial Gas include requirements to
invest in demand side resources that are cost-effective or less expensive than current energy
supply costs, long-term contracts with renewable electricity suppliers for up to 3% of the
utilities” load, the development of a smart grid pilot program, and net metering to allow
customers to sell self-generated electricity back to the utilities. Utilities would be allowed to
recover costs associated with these new requirements and have the opportunity to earn incentives
for certain of these provisions. The law allows electric utilities to invest in solar generation,
provided, however, that such company shall not own or operate more than 25 megawatts (MW)
before January 1, 2009 and 50 MW after January 1, 2010. Pursuant to this provision, on April 23,
2009, Mass Electric and Nantucket Electric filed a proposal with the MADPU to construct, own,
and operate approximately S MW of solar generation at a total capital cost of approximately $31
million. In addition, under the new law, the maximum level of service quality penalties has been
increased from 2.0 to 2.5% of distribution revenues. Any future holding company mergers will
now require approval of the MADPU. Mass Electric and Nantucket Electric also filed a proposed
smart grid pilot program on April 1, 2009 which is aiso pending at the MADPU. The overall cost
of the proposed pilot program is estimated at approximately $56.4 million and is subject to
MADPU approval. If the program is approved, the provisions of the Green Communities Act
allow for the recovery of the program costs through commodity service rates. Mass Electric and
Nantucket Electric also plan to file with the MADPU for a second phase of the smart program in
September 2009.

Oversight Investigation .

On April 6, 2007, the Attorney General filed a petition to request that the MADPU open an
oversight investigation to examine the impact of the merger of National Grid ple and KeySpan
on Massachusetts customers, Hearings on the Attorney General’s request were held on five
separate dates in February and March of 2009, On May 135, 2009, the Atiorney general submitted
it’s brief. The brief focused primarily on the service quality impacts of the merger. Mass Electric,
Nantucket Electric, Boston Gas and Colonial Gas filed briefs on June 8§, 2009. Reply briefs have
been filed and the Company cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings.

NOTE C - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Environmental Matters

The normal ongoing operations and historic activities of the Company are subject to various
federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. Like most other industrial
companies, the Company’s historic and current gas, electric transmission and distribution and
electric generation businesses use or generate some hazardous and potentially hazardous wastes
and by-products. Under federal and state Superfund laws, potential liability for the historic
contamination of property may be imposed on responsible parties jointly and severally, without
fault, even if the activitics were lawful when they occurred.

Air:

Our generating facilities are located within a Clean Air Act (CAA) ozone non-attainment and
PM 2.5 (fine particulate matter) non-attainment area, and are likely to be subject to increasingly
stringent NOx, S02 and particulate emission limitations. While repulatory programs to
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implement such limitations are the subject of various federal legal proceedings, the Company is
implementing strategies to achieve various improvements. These improvements also include
measures to improve fuel efficiency and reduce CO2 emissions and are planned to be incurred
over a five to six year period and are estimated to cost approximately $100 million. Such
amounts are substantially recoverable through contractual provisions with LIPA.

Water:

Additional capital expenditures associated with the compliance and renewal of the surface water
discharge permits for our power plants will likely be required by the Department of
Environmental Conservation (DEC). Such amounts, estimated to be approximately between $60

million and $ 90 million over the next ten years, are recoverable through contractual provisions
with LIPA.

Land, Manufactured Gus Plants and Related Facilities:

Federal and state environmental regulators, as well as private parties, have alleged that several of
the Company’s subsidiaries are potentially responsible parties under Superfund laws for the
remediation of numerous contaminated sites in New England and New York. The Company uses
the “Expected Value” method for measuring its environmental liabilities. The Expected Value
method applies a weighting to potential future expenditures based on the probability of these
costs being incurred. A liability is recognized for all potential costs based on this probability.
Costs considered to be 100% probable of being incurred are recognized in full, with costs below
a 100% probability recognized in proportion to their probability. KeySpan discounted its
environmental reserves at the time of acquisition using an appropriate fair value methodology.
Adjustments to the environmental reserves based on changing circumstances will be
undiscounted. Environmental reserves recorded prior to the KeySpan Acquisition for non-
KeySpan companies have not been discounted,

At March 31, 2009, the Company’s total reserve for estimated manufactured gas plant (MGP)
related environmental activities are approximately $1.3 billion. The potential high end of the
range at March 31, 2009 is presently estimated at approximately $2.0 billion on an undiscounted
basis. Management believes that obligations imposed on the Company because of the
environmental laws will not have a material adverse effect on its operations, financial condition
or cash flows. Through various rate orders issued by the NYPSC, MADPU, NHPUC and RIPUC
costs related to MGP environmental cleanup activities are recovered in rates charged to gas
distribution customers. Accordingly, the Company hag reflected a regulatory asset of $1.7
billion.

The Company is pursuing claims against other potentially responsible partics to recover
investigation and remediation costs it believes are the obligations of those parties. The Comparty
cannot predict the likelihood of success of such claims.

Non-Utility Sites:

The Company is aware of two non-ulility sites for which it may have or share environmental
remediation or ongoing maintenance responsibility. The Company presently estimates the
remaining cost of the environmenta! cleanup activities for these two non-utility sites will be
approximately $25.8 million, which amount has been accrued as a reasonable estimate of
probable costs for known sites however, remediation costs for each site may be materially higher
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than noted, depending upon changing technologies and regulatory standards, selected end use for
cach site, and actual environmental conditions encountered.

The Company believes that in the aggregate, the accrued liability for the sites and related
facilities identified above are reasonable estimates of the probable cost for the investigation and
remediation of these sites and facilities. As circumstances warrant, we periodically re-evaluate
the accrued liabilities associated with MGP sites and related facilities, We may be required to
investigate and, if necessary, remediate each site previously noted, or other currently unknown
former sites and related facility sites, the cost of which is not presently determinable.

Decommissioning Nuclear Units

NEP has minority interests in three nuclear generating companics: Yankee Atomic Electric
Company (Yankee Atomic), Connecticut Yankee Atomic Power Company (Connecticut
Yankee), and Maine Yankee Atomic Power Company (Maine Yankee) (together, the Yankees),
These ownership interests are accounted for on the equity method. The Yankees operated nuclear
generating units that have been permanently retired. Physical decommissioning of the units is
complete. Spent nuclear fuel remains on each site, awaiting fulfillment by the U.S. Department
of Energy (DOE) of its statutory obligation to remove it. In addition, groundwater monitoring is
ongoing at each site,

The three units are as follows:

The Company’s Future Estimated

Investment as of Billings to the

March 31, 2009 _ Company

(in millions {in millions

Unit Percent of dollars) Date Retired of dollars)
Yankee Atomic 34.5 3 06 Feb 1992 $ 233
Connecticut Yankee 19.5 3 25 Dec 1996 § 595
Maine Yankee 24 3 06 Aug 1997 ¥ 129

With respect to each of the units, at March 31, 2009 NEP has a $167 million liability and a
regulatory asset reflecting the estimated future decommissioning billings from the Yankees, In a
1993 decision, the FERC allowed Yankee Atomic to recover its undepreciated investment in the
plant, including a return on that investment, as well as unfunded nuclear decommissioning costs
and other costs. Maine Yankee and Connecticut Yankee recover their prudently incurred costs,
including 4 return, in accordance with settlement agreements approved by the FERC in May
1999 and July 2000, respectively. The Yankees collect the approved costs from their purchasers,
including NEP. NEP’s share of the decommissioning costs is accounted for in purchased electric
energy on the income statement, Under settlement agreements, NEP is permitted to recover
prudently incurred decommissioning costs through contract termination charges.

The Yankees are periodically required to file rate cases for FERC approval, which present the

Yankees® estimated future decommissioning costs. The Yankees are cumrently collecting
decommissioning and other costs under FERC Orders issued in their respective rate cases.
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Future billings from the Yankees are based on cost estimates, These estimates include the
projected costs of groundwater monitoring, security, liability and property insurance and other
costs. They also inelude costs for interim spent fuel storage facilities, which the Yankees have
constructed during litigation they brought to enforce the DOE’s obligation to remove the fuel as
required by the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982. Following a trial at the U.S. Court of Federal
Claims (Claims Court) to determine the level of damages, on October 6, 2006, the Claims Court
awarded the three companies approximately $143 million for spent fuel storage costs that had
been incurred through 2001 and 2002, The Yankees had requested $176 million. On December
4, 2006, the DOE filed a notice of appeal with the U, S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit.
The Court of Appeals has remanded the matter to the trial court for further proceedings and a
discovery schedule leading to an August 2009 trial date has been entered. If the Yankees are
successful in the litigation, the damages received by the Yankees, net of litigation expenses and
taxes, will be applied to reduce the decommissioning and other costs collected from their
purchasers. On December 14, 2007, the Yankees brought further litigation in the Claims Court to
recover damages incurred subsequent to 2001 and 2002. DOE does not anticipate having a long
term storage facility available to accommodate spent fuel for at least a decade. The
decommissioning costs that are actually incurred by the Yankees may exceed the estimated
amounts, perhaps substantially.

Connecticut Yankee Rate Filing, Prudence Challenge and Other Proceedings

On July 1, 2004, Connecticut Yankee asked FERC for a rate increase to reflect increased costs
for decommissioning, pensions and other employment benefits, increased security and insurance
costs and other expenses. In aggregate, the increase requested amounted to approximately $396
million through 2010. NEP’s share is included in the future estimated billings shown in the
preceding table. On November 16, 2006, FERC issued an Order approving a settlement reached
by parties to the proceeding. Under the settlement, as a result of the operation of a budget
incentive mechanism established in a prior rate settlement, NEP was not allowed to recover $1
million of its expenditures,

The settlement provides that Connecticut Yankee may resume payment of dividends to return
equity to sponsors. After January 1, 2008, Connecticut Yankce will not be allowed to earn a
return on equity greater than $10 million.

On July 31, 2008, Connecticut Yankee submitted an application to FERC to reduce ifs rates by
$0.6 million annually. This reduction is the net effect of: (i) a reduction of $2.5 million annually
in decommissioning charges, as a result of the reconciliation of actual and projected costs of
completing decommissioning and (ii) an increase of $1.9 million annually in the recovery of
costs for post-employment benefits other than pension. On September 10, 2008 FERC issued an
order accepting this rate filing and settlement.

Maine Yankee Rate Filing

Maine Yankee submitted a Section 205 rate filing to FERC on August 1, 2008, The sole purpose
of this filing was to modify the Maine Yankee tariff in order to replenish the Spent Fuel Disposal
Trust (SFDT) Fund as contemplated in the settlement agreement approved by the Commission in
Maine Yankee’s last rate case proceeding, on September 16, 2004, Maine Yankee is proposing a
five-year recovery period and requests $6.4 million on an annualized basis to fund the SFDT.
Because the effective date of this filing occurs on the month following the completion of
decommissioning collections, Maine Yankee’s annual decommissioning rates will reduce to zero
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and therefore, even with the recovery of the amounts to replenish the SFDT fund, its total rates
will decrease by approximately $20 million annually,

In its initial FERC filing, Maine Yankee requested a 6.5% ROE. In ity intervention and
comments, the Maine Publie Utility Commission (PUC) indicated that they could not support the
6.5%. After negotiations, the parties agreed to a 5.5% ROE and the filing was amended to
include this change. On October 30, 2008, FERC accepted Maine Yankee’s amended filing,
effective as of November 1, 2008,

Nuclear Contingencies

As of March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has a liability of $167 million and $165 million,
respectively, in non-current liabilities for the disposal of nuclear fuel irradiated prior to 1983 at
Niagara Mohawk’s former nuclear facilities. In January 1983, the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of
1982 (the Nuclear Waste Act) established a cost of $.001 per kWh of net generation for current
disposal of nuclear fuel and provides for a determination of the Company’s liability to the DOE
for the disposal of nuclear fuel irradiated prior to 1983, The Nuclear Waste Act also provides
three payment options for liquidating such liability and the Company has elected to delay
payment, with interest, until the year in which Constellation Energy Group Inc., which purchased
the Niagara Mohawk’s nuclear assets, initially plans to ship irradiated fuel to an approved DOE
disposal facility. Progress in developing the DOE facility has been slow and it is anticipated that
the DOE facility will not be ready to accept deliveries until at least 2010.

Long-Term Contracts for the Purchase of Electric Power

The Company’s subsidiaries have several types of long-term contracts for the purchase of
electric power, Substantially all of these contracts require power to be delivered before the
Company is obligated to make payment. The Company’s commitments under these long-term
contracts, as of March 31, 2009, are summarized in the table below.

Fiscal Years linded Estimated Payments
March 31, {in millions of dollars)

2010 $ 256.6

2011 $ 183.7

2012 $ 154.7

2013 3 61.8

2014 g 62.8

Thercafter 3 182.8

The Company’s subsidiaries can purchase additional energy to meet load requirements from
other independent power producers (IPPs), other wtilities, energy merchants or on the open
market through the New York Independent System Operator (NYISO) or the ISO-NE at market
prices.

Gas Supply, Storage and Pipeline Commitments

The Company’s gas distribution subsidiaries have entered into various contracts for gas delivery,
storage and supply services. Certain of these contracts require payment of annual demand
charges, The Company and its gas distribution subsidiaries are liable for these payments
regardless of the level of services required from third parties. Such charges are currently
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recovered from utility customers as gas costs. Table below summarized the estimated
commitments as of March 31, 2009,

Fiscal Years Ended Estimated Payments
March 31, (in millions of dollars)
2010 1,165.8
2011 3 988.2
2012 S 736.8
2013 $ 529.8
2014 § 482.3
Thereafter $ 432.1
Legal Matters

Narragansett Electric

The Company has been in litigation with Constellation Energy Commodities Group
{Constellation) in two cases. In the first case, commenced on September 11, 2006 in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Rhode Island, Constellation had alleged that certain power
purchase agreements entitled it to additional compensation for capacity during calendar years
2006-2009, following the FERC approved settlement in the forward capacity market. According
to Consteliation, the resolution of this claim could have adversely affected Constellation in
amounts upwards of $150 million. In the second case commenced on April 14, 2008 in the U.S,
District Court for the District of Massachusetts, Constellation had alleged that certain power
purchase agreements entitled it 1o payments for a fuel adjustment factor during calendar years
2005-2009. The prospective portion of the fuel adjustment claim was subject to the effects of
changing fuel prices, By Constellation’s methodology for payment calculation, it was estimated
that damages could have exceeded $200 million.

On September 30, 2008, the RIPUC voted to approve a settlement of both matters that had been
signed by the Company, the Division of Public Utilities and Carriers (represented by the Rhode
Island Attorney General’s Office), and Constellation. Under the settlement, the Company made a
lump sum payment of $20 million, payable within 20 days of the written order becoming final
and non-appealable. In addition, the pricing provisions of two of the power purchase agreements
have been amended to provide for monthly contract reservation charges paid in calendar year
2009, totaling $2.5 million per month, and payable on the last day of the month, from January
31, 2009 through December 31, 2009. The monthly contract reservation charges are not tied to
volume, but are contingent upon Constellation’s performance under the contracts. On October
21, 2008, the RIPUC issued its final written order, confirming approval of the settlement, and on
December 23, 2008, the RIPUC approved the Company’s revised commodity service rates,
which include recovery of the settlement costs and went into effect in January 2009. The
approvals of the RIPUC allowed the Company recovery of the lump sum payment and contract
reservation charges from customers in Narragansett’s commodity service rates the next time
Narragansett changes those rates, which is expected to occur as of January 1, 2009. On Qctober
21, 2008, the RIPUC issued its final written order, confirming approval of the settlement.

37




The Company accrued the $20 million settlement on its March 2008 balance sheet. Since the
payment is fully recoverable from the Company’s ratepayers. We recorded an offsefting
customer accounts receivable in a like amount resulting in no impact to the Company’s statement
of Income.

New England Power

From 1983 until 1998, NEP was the wholesale power supplier for Norwood, Massachusetts, In
April 1998, Norwood began taking power from another supplier, although its contract term with
NEP ran to 2008. Pursuant to a tariff amendment approved by the FERC in May 1998, NEP
began charging Norwood a monthly CTC of $0.6 million, plus intercst on unpaid balances at
18% per year, NEP and Norwood have been engaged in litigation al the FERC and in the
Massachusetts state court, as follows.

On December 20, 2003, Norwood filed a complaint with FERC under Section 206 of the Federal
Power Act, contending that FERC did not approve the application of NEP’s 1998 amended CTC
to Norwood, and that the CTC amount is too high in any event. The FERC held that it did
approve the CTC and that the CTC amount is correctly calculated, The First Circuit upheld
FERC, and the US Supreme Court denied Norwood’s petition for certiorari. However, FERC
ruled on May 17, 2007 that the interest to be paid by Norwood on unpaid monthly CTC bills
should be calculated at the prime rate from the beginning of the CTC and not at 1.5% per month,
as provided in the tariff. NEP appealed this interest ruling to the First Circuit on the ground that
it goes beyond FERC’s authority to award retroactive relief under Section 206 of the Federal
Power Act, and violates the filed rate doctrine. On July 16, 2008, the First Circuit again
remanded the case to FERC for further consideration of exactly when the reduced interest rate
should apply to calculate the payment due from Norwood. On January 15, 2009, FERC issued
an order on remand leaving, in effect the tariff®s 1.5% interest rate applicable to Norwood’s
unpaid monthly CTC bills for the period from the 1998 inception of the CTC through February
20, 2004 and from May 22, 2004 through June 29, 2006, Interest on unpaid CTC bills for the
remaining periods is to be calculated in accordance with the interest rates set by Section 35.19a
of the MADPU’s regulations, On February 13, 2009 Norwood filed a rehearing request at FERC
seeking an expansion of the time period in which the reduced interest rates are applicable, and
seeking an order directing that the interest rates not be subject to compounding.

In 1998, NEP filed a collection action in Massachusetis Superior Court (Worcester County) to
collect the CTC from Norwood. In June 2004, NEP obtained a judgment from the Superior Court
based on amounts owed through January 31, 2001, The Massachusetts appelate courts sustained
NEP’s judgment against several challenges by Norwood. State court proceedings have been
stayed pending the outcome of the FERC and First Circuit proceedings described above.

To date, Norwood has paid NEP $93.4 million including its last payment of approximately $53.2
million made in January 2008. On July 2, 2009, NEP and Norwood filed a settlement agreement
at FERC that provides for Norwood to make an additional payment of $20 million by no later
than August 31, 2009, following FERC acceptance of the settlement. FERC approved the
settlement and Norwood paid the final $20 million payment in August 2009,

Brooklyn Union Gas Company and KeySpan Gas East Corporation

Since July 12, 2006, several lawsuits have been filed which allege damages resulting from
contamination associated with the historic operations of former manufactured gas plants located
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in Bay Shore. The Company has been conducting site investigations and remediations at these
locations pursuant to Administrative Orders on Consent (ACQO) with the New York State DEC.
One of these Jawsuits was settled on May 15, 2008 by purchasing a residential property. There is
one lawsuit pending related to the former Clifton manufactured gas plant on Staten Island. The
Company intends to contest each of the remaining proceedings vigorously.

On February 8, 2007, we received a Notice of Intent to File Suit from the Office of the Attorney
General for the State of New York (AG) against the Company and four other companies in
connection with the cleanup of historical contamination found in certain lands located in
Greenpoint, Brooklyn and in an adjoining waterway. KeySpan and/or the Company has
previously agreed to remediate portions of the properties referenced in this notice and will work
cooperatively with the DEC and AG to address environmental conditions associated with the
remainder of the properties, The Company has entered into an ACO for one of the land-based
sites and is currently negotiating the terms of another ACO for the remaining land-based sites.
To resolve issues associated with the waterway, The Company and the four other companies are
currently negotiating the terms of a Consent Decree. At this time, we are unable to predict what
effect, if any, the outcome of these proceedings will have on our financial condition, results of
operation and cash flows,

Other

In May 2007, KeySpan received a Civil Investigative Demand (CID) from the United States
Department of Justice, Antitrust Division, requesting the production of documents and
information relating to its investigation of competitive issucs in the New York City electric
energy capacity market prior to the acquisition of KeySpan. The CID is a request for information
in the course of an investigation and does not constitute the commencement of legal proceedings,
and no specific allegations have been made, In April 2008, KeySpan received a second CID in
connection with this matter and in July 2009, the Depariment of Justice made and initial
seltlement offer to KeySpan, We continue to believe that our activity in the capacity market is
consistent with all applicable laws and regulations and will continue to fully cooperate with this
investigation.

Lease Obligations

The Company has various opcrating leases which include the lease of the Company’s Brooklyn
headquarters, a leveraged lease financing arrangement (as discussed below), as well as leases for
other buildings, office equipment, vehicles and power operating equipment. Future minimum
cash lease payments under various leases are $137.3 million per year over the next five years and
$719.7 million, in the aggregate, for all years thereafter.

The Company entered into a lease dated January 7, 2008, in connection with an office building
newly constructed in Waltham, Massachusetts, The term of the lease expires twenty vears and
five months after the Commencement Date. The base rent under the lease increases every five
years and will range between $10 million and $13 million annually. The building, including all
significant tenant improvements, was completed on May 18, 2009 — the Commencement Date.

Sale/lecaseback Transaction: The Company had a leveraged lease financing arrangement
associated with the Ravenswood Expansion. In May 2004, the unit was acquired by a lessor from
our subsidiary, KeySpan Ravenswood, LLC, and simultaneously leased back to that subsidiary.
All the obligations of KeySpan Ravenswood, LLC have been unconditionally guaranteed by us,
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This lease transaction qualified as an operating lease under SFAS 98 “Accounting for Leases:
Sale/Leascback Transactions Involving Real Estate; Sales-Type Leases of Real Estate; Definition
of the Lease Term; an Initial Direct Costs of Direct Financing Leases, an amendment of FASB
Statements No.13, 66, 91 and a rescission of FASB Statement No. 26 and Technical Bulletin No.,
79-11.” The sale of KeySpan Ravenswood LLC provided for the restructuring and transfer of
KeySpan’s interest in the Ravenswood Expansion. TransCanada Corporation, the buyer of
KeySpan Ravenswood LLC, prepaid this sublease and provided back-to-back guarantees.
However, the original lease will remain in place and we will continue to make the required
payments under such lease through 2039. At March 31, 2009, the Company’s obligation related
to the Sale/leaseback transaction was $528.7 million.

Financial Guarantees _

The Company has guaranteed the principal and interest payments on certain outstanding debt as
discussed in Note F, *Long Term Debt”. Additionally, the Company has issued financial
guarantees in the normal course of business, on behalf of its subsidiaries, to various third party
creditors. At March 31, 2009, the following amounts would have to be paid by us in the event of
non-payment by the primary obligor at the time payment is due:

Amount of Expiration
Nature of Guarantee (in millions of dollars) Exposure Dates
Guarantees for Subsidiaries
Medium-Term Notes - KeySpan Gas East Corporation () % 400.0 2010
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds (i) 128.3 2027
Ravenswood - Sale/lcaseback (i) 619.2 2040
Reservoir Woods (iv) 303.6 2029
Surety Bonds (v) 776  Revolving
Commodity Guaraniees and Other {vi) 761 2009-2027
Letters of Credit (vii) 137.5  2009-2011
$ 17423

The following is a description of the Company’s outstanding subsidiary guarantees:

(i) The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed $400 million to holders of
Medium-Term Notes issued by KeySpan (ias East. These notes are due to be repaid
February 1, 2010, KeySpan Gas East is required to comply with certain financial
covenants under the debt agreements. The face value of these notes is included in
current portion of the long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

(i)  The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the payment obligations of its
subsidiaries with regard to $128,3 million of Industrial Development Revenue Bonds
issued through the Nassau County and Suffolk County Industrial Development
Authorities for the construction of two electric-generation peaking plants on Long
Island. The face value of these notes are included in long-term debt on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

(i)  The Company had guaranteed all payment and performance obligations of KeySpan
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vi)

(vii)

Ravenswood, LLC, the lesses under the sale/leaseback transaction associated with the
Ravenswood Expansion, including future decommissioning costs prior to the sale.
The cash consideration for KeySpan Ravenswood, LLC included prepayment from
TransCanada for the remaining lease payments on a net present value basis. The
Company’s requirement to make regular lease payments under this lease continues
after the sale of KeySpan Ravenswood, LLC.

The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed approximately $303,6 million
in lease payments through 2029 related to the lease of office facilities at Reservoir
Woods in Waltham, MA.,

The Company has agreed to indemnify the issuers of various surety and performance
bonds associated with certain construction projects being performed by certain
current and former subsidiaries, In the event that the subsidiaries fail to perform their
obligations under contracts, the injured party may demand that the surety make
payments or provide services under the bond. We would then be obligated to
reimburse the surety for any expenses or cash outlays it incurs, Although the
Company is not guaranteeing any new bonds for any of the former subsidiaries, the
Company’s indemnity obligation supports the contractual obligation of these former
subsidiaries. The Company has also received from a former subsidiary an indemnity
bond issued by a third party insurance company, the purpose of which is to reimburse
the Company in an amount up to $80 million in the event it is required to perform
under all other indemnity obligations previously incurred by the Company to support
such company’s bonded projects existing prior to divestiture. At March 31, 2009, the
total cost to complete such remaining bonded projects is estimated to be
approximately $8.3 million.

The Company has guaranteed commodity-related payments for certain subsidiaries.
These guarantees are provided to third parties to facilitate physical and financial
transactions involved in the purchase and transportation of natural gas, oil and other
petroleum products for electric production and marketing activitics. The guarantees
cover actual purchases by these subsidiaries that are still outstanding as of March 31,
2009.

The Company has arranged for stand-by letters of credit to be issued to third parties
that have extended credit to certain subsidiaries. Certain vendors reguire us to post
letters of credit to guarantee subsidiary performance under our contracts and to ensure
payment to our subsidiary subcontractors and vendors under those contracts. Certain
of our vendors also require letters of credit to ensure reimbursement for amounts they
are disbursing on behalf of our subsidiaries, such as to beneficiaries under our self-
funded insurance programs. Such letters of credit are generally issued by a bank or
similar financial instilution. The letters of credit commit the issuer to pay specified
amounts to the holder of the letter of credit if the holder demonstrates that we have
failed to perform specified actions. If this were to oceur, the Company would be
required to reimburse the issuer of the letter of credit.
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To date, the Company has not had a claim made against it for any of the above guarantees and
we have no reason to believe that our subsidiaries or former subsidiaries will default on their
current obligations. However, we cannot predict when or if any defaults may take place or the
impact any such defaults may have on our consolidated results of operations, financial condition
or cash flows,

The Company owns & 26.25% ownership interest in the Millennium Pipeline Company LLC
(Milletmium), the developet of the Millennium Pipeline project. The Company has guaranteed
$210 million of an $800 million Millennium Pipeline construction loan. The $210 million
represents the Company’s proportionate share of the $800 million loan based on the Company’s
26.25% ownetship interest in the Millennium Pipeline project. This guaraniee has been
accounted for in accordance with FIN 45 “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.”

Asset Refirernent Obligations. The Company has various asset retirement obligations primarily
associated with its gas distribution and electric generation activities. Generally, the Company’s
largest asset retirement obligations relate to: (i) legal requirements to cut (disconnect from the
gas distribution system), purge (clean of natural gas and PCB contaminants) and cap gas mains
within its gas distribution and transmission system when mains ave retired in place; or dispose of
sections of gas main when removed from the pipeline system; (i) cleaning and removal
requirements associated with storage tanks containing waste oil and other waste contaminants;
and (iii) legal requireiments to remove asbestos upon major renovation or demolition of structures
angd facilities. The asset retirement obligation at March 31, 2009 and 2008 was $67.7 million and
$67.6 million, respectively,

NOTE D - ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following table details the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Total
Unrealized Accumulated
Galns Postretirement Other
{L.osses) on Benefit Cash Flow  Comprehensive

(in millions of dollars) investments Liabilities Hedges Ingome (Loss)
March 31, 2007 & 93 § {410.8) ¥ (0.2 % (401.7)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes:

Unrealized gains (Josses) on seeuritices (13.6) - - (13.6)

Unrealized gains (losses) on hedges - . - -

Change in pension and other postretirement provisions - (100.5) - (100.5)

Relagsification adjustment for (gain)/ loss included in net

income 3.0 . 0.2 3.2
Mareh 31, 2008 T $ 1.3} § (511.3) % . % (512.6)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes:

Unrealized gaing (losses) on investments {15.4) - - (15.4)

Unrealized gaing (losses) on hedging B - 2.4 2.4

Change in pension and other postretirement provisions - {517.7) - G117

Reclassification adjustment for (gain) included in net

income (0.4) - - (0.4)
March 31, 2009 3 (17.1) &  {1.029.0) § 24 % (,043.N
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NOTE E - DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In the normal course of business, the Company’s subsidiaries are party to derivative instruments,
such as futures, options, swaps, and physical forwards that are principally used to manage
commodity prices associated with its natural gas and electric operations. These financial
exposures are monitored and managed as an integral part of the Company’s overall Financial
Risk Management Policy. At the core of the policy is a condition that the Company will engage
in activities at risk only to the extent that those activities fall within commodities and financial
markets to which it has a physical market exposure in terms and volumes consistent with its core
business.

As discussed in greater detail below, certain derivative instruments employed by the Company
are accounted for as cash-flow hedges and receive hedge accounting treatment under SFAS 133
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS 149
“Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” collectively
SFAS 133. The change in fair value of insiruments that qualify for hedge accounting are deferred
in accumulated other comprehensive income and will be reclassified through purchased
electricity or purchased gas expense commensurate with the timing of the forecasted
transactions,

The Company also employs derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting
treatment. Most of the derivative instruments utilized by the Company are subject to SFAS 71
“Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” since the Company’s rate
agreements allow for the pass-through of the commodity costs of electricity and natural gas and
the costs related to hedging.

Financial Derivatives — Recorded under SFAS 71
Regulated Utilities — Gas

We use derivative financial instruments (swaps, options, and futures) to reduce the cash flow
variability associated with the purchase price for a portion of future natural gas purchases
associated with our gas service territories, Our strategy is to minimize fluctuations in gas sales
prices to our regulated firm gas sales customers. The accounting for these derivative instruments
is subject to SFAS 71, Therefore, the fair value of these derivatives are recorded as current or
deferred assets and liabilities, with offsetting positions recorded as regulatory assets and
regulatory liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Gains or losses on the settlement of
these contracts ate initially deferred and then refunded to, or collected from firm gas sales
customers consistent with regulatory requirements. At March 31, 2009 the net fair valoe of these
derivative instraments was a liability of $274.9 million, At March 31, 2008 the net fair value of
these derivative instruments was $152.6 million.

Regulated Utilities - Electricity
We also usc derivative financial instruments (swaps and futures) to reduce the cash flow
variability associated with the purchase price for a portion of future electricity purchases

associated with our electric service territories. Qur strategy is lo minimize fluctuations in
electricity sales prices to our regulated firm electric sales customers, The accounting for these

43




derivative instruments is subject to SFAS 71, Therefore, the fair value of these derivatives are
recorded as current or deferred assets and liabilities, with offsetting positions recorded as
regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Gains or losses on
the settlement of these contracts are initially deferred and then refunded to, or collected from
firm electric sales customers consistent with regulatory requirements. At March 31, 2009 the net
fair value of these derivative instruments was a liability of $42.5 million. At March 31, 2008 the
net fair value of these derivative instraments was $10.3 million,

Physical Derivatives — Recorded under SFAS 71
Regulated Utilities

As a result of a USGen bankruptcy scttlement agreement (Bankruptey Settlement), NEP
resumed the performance and payment obligations under power supply contracts that had been
transferred to USGen when the Company divested its generating business. The fair value of these
derivative instruments at March 31, 2009 was a liability of $174.5 million. The fair value of
these derivative instruments at March 31, 2008 was a liability of $94.0 million,

The Company continues to record this derivative liability which is the above-market portion of
the power supply contracts with an equal offset to a corresponding regulatory asset. The
petformance and payment obligations will not affect the results of operations, as the Company
will recover the above-market cost of the power supply contracts from customers through the
CTC. In accordance with the Bankruptcy Settlement, the Company received proceeds of
approximately $196 miilion in June 2005 from USGen. That amount relates in part to the power
supply contracts and the Company is crediting that amount to customers through a reduction in
rates through December 31, 2009.

SFAS 133 establishes criteria that must be satisfied in order for option contracts, forward
contracts with optionality features, or contracts that combine a forward contract and a purchase
option contract to qualify for the normal purchases and sales exception, Certain contracts for the
physical purchase of natural gas associated with our regulated gas service territories do not
qualify for normal purchases under SFAS 133, These derivatives are also subject to SFAS 71
accounting treatment. At March 31, 2009, the net fair value of these derivatives was a liability of
$13.5 million. The fair value of these derivative instruments at March 31, 2008 was $40.3
million.

Financial Derivatives — Receiving Hedge Accounting

Our gas production subsidiary, Seneca-Upshur, utilizes OTC natural gas swaps to hedge the cash
flow variability associated with the forecasted sales of a portion of its natural gas production, At
March 31, 2009, Seneca-Upshur has hedge positions in place for approximately 70% of its
estimated 2009/2010 gas production, net of gathering costs. We use market quoted forward
prices to value these swap positions. The maximum length of time over which Seneca-Upshur
has hedged such cash flow variability is through December 2009. The fair value of these
derivative instruments at March 31, 2009 was $4.2 million. The amount of gains currently
included in accumulated other comprehensive income and expected to be reclassified to earnings
in the next twelve months is $4.2 million. Ineffectiveness associated with these outstanding
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derivative financial instruments was immaterial for the three months ended March 31, 2009. The
fair value of these derivative instruments at March 31, 2008 was a liability of $7.0 million.

These derivative financial instruments are designated as cash flow hedges under SFAS 133 and
are not considered held for trading purposes as defined by current accounting literature,
Accordingly, we carry the fair value of these derivative instruments on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as either a current or deferred asset or liability, as appropriate, and record the effective
portion of unrealized gains or losses in accumulated other comprehensive income. Gains and
losses are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to the Consolidated
Statement of Income in the period the hedged transaction affects earnings. Gains and losses on
settled transactions are reflected as a component of revenue. Any hedge ineffectiveness that
results from changes during the period in the price differentials between the index price of the
derivative contract and the price of the purchase or sale for the cash flow that is being hedged is
recorded directly to earnings. Hedge ineffectiveness for the twelve months ended March 31,
2009 was immaterial,

Financial Derivatives — Not Recelving Hedge Accounting

Additionally, the Company employs a limited number of unleaded gasoline and diesel swaps to
hedge a small portion of its risk associated with changing prices for fleet fuel, a small number of
derivative instruments related to storage optimization, and a limited number of natural gas swaps
to hedge the risk associated with fixed price natural gas sales contracts for certain Jarge gas sales
customers. These financial derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment,
The maximum length of time over which derivative financial instruments are in-place is through
October 2010. The fair value of these contracts at March 31, 2009 was a liability of $0.2 million,
We use market quoted forward prices to value these contracts. The fair value of these derivative
instruments at March 31, 2008 was $1.3 million.

Treasury financial instruments

Financial derivative are used for hedging purposes in the management of exposure to interest rate
risk enabling the Company to optimize the overall cost of accessing debt capital markets, and
mitigating the market risk which would otherwise arise from the maturity of its treasury related
assets and liabilities.

Treasury related derivative instruments may qualify as either fair value hedges or cash flow
hedges. At present, the Company uses fair value hedges, consisting of interest rate and cross-
currency swaps that are used to protect against changes in the fair value of fixed-rate, long-term
financial instruments due to movements in market interest rates. For qualifying fair value hedges,
all changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instrument and changes in the fair value of
the item in relation to the risk being hedged are recognized in the income statement. If the hedge
relationship is terminated, the fair value adjustment 1o the hedged item continues to be reported
as part of the basis of the item and is amortized to the income statement as a yield adjustment
over the remainder of the hedging period.

At March 31, 2009, the Company had a net hedged liability position of $10.4 million on $571.9
million of debt. At March 31, 2008, the Company had a net hedged liability position of $14.0
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million on $541.5 million of debt, Net losses on the derivative financial instruments were $19.2
million and $0.9 million for the twelve months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The following are commodity volumes associated with the derivative contracts:

As of March 31, 2009

{000 3 Total
Cias (dths) 3 219,558
Physicals  |Blectric (Mwhs 4,524
Cras swaps (dths) 04,457
Gas options (dths) N 1,036
CGas futures (dths) 29,610
Electric tutures (Mwhs) 18
Financinls  |Electric swaps (Mwhs) 1 4,090
Gas (dths) 344,661
Total Electric (Mwhs) 8,632

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFFAS No. 161 “Disclosure about Derivative Instruments and
Hedging”, to amend and expand the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 133 with the intent to
provide users of the financial statement with a better understanding of how and why an entity
uses derivatives instruments. Accordingly, this statement, SFAS No. 161, requires enhanced
disclosures about an entity’s derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the
transparency of financial reporting. Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted SFAS 161
which has been applied to our financial reports for the period ending March 31, 2009,

The following disclosures reflect the Company’s derivative instrument positions for the periods
indicated, excluding those elected as normal purchase normal sale):
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Falr Values of Derlvative Instruments

Assat Derlvativas 1labliity Darlvatives |
Maren 21, March 39, March 31, March
2009 2008 2000 31, 2008
Berivative not dosignated as hedging
| in Millions of Dollarg

Gas Contrects:
Gus Futuros Conlract - cutranl assot
IPP Gas Condrac! - current asset

Gas Swap Contract - current assel
(as Options Gontract - current asset
Gas Purchase Contract - current asset
Current Assat

Gas Fulures Conleact - delerred asse!
Gas Swap Contract - deferred assel
Gas Purchase Conlract - defarred aszel
Deforred Assel

Elactric Conlracts:
Electric Futures Contract - Currend Assat

Deferred Asset

Gas Purchase Contract - Current Asse!
Ol Contracts:

Elestric Contracts:
Electric Swap Contract - Current Assat
Subtotal

Total darivatives not designated as hadging
Instrumants under Statement 133

1.4

67.3

275
10.7
114.0
2.2
29
158.3

a8
11.6
103.0
118.1

10.3

18
28

287.8

Gas Fulures Contract - currant llabiflty
Gas Swap Contract - current liabliity
Gas Options Coniract - curent liability
Gas Purchass Contract - currant llabifity

Curront Liabiiity

Gas Futures Contract - deforred Fability
Gag Swap Contract - delerred liability
Gag Purchase Contract - defarred tability
Delerrod Lighlily

Electric Futures Conlrac!

1P Electric Contract « Currant Liabifity
Eleciric Swap Contract - Currant Liability
Eleetric Purchase Contract - Gurrent Liability
Currant Liability

Electric Swap Contract - Defarrad Liability
Electric Purchase Contract - Deferred Linbibty
Doferrad Liabilily

Gas Swap Contract - Current Liability
Gas Purchase Contral - Dafarrad Liability

Qil Swap Conlract - Cutsent Liability

(78.0)
(192.1)
(14)
(13.1)
(284.9)
(7.2)
(15.3)
(37.3)
(59.7)
0.1
{13.5;
{29.5)
(45.1)
(26.9)
{145.0)
(172.0)

(561.4)
{0.6)
{©.9)
(1.5

{562.9)

(223.7)

00)
02)
{6.2)

{5.5)
0.0
(18.8)

(56.4)
(73.0)

(5‘1.1)
(19.3)
{70.4)

(74.9)
{74.9)

0.1
9

(0.3)

{1.5)

(225.2)

Derivative designated as hedging Instruments

6 :
Gas Swap Contract - Currant Asset

42 . Gas Swap Conlract - Current Elability - (5.4
Gas Swap Coniract - Deferred Liability . (1.6)
Total derivatives designated as hadging
instruments under Slatement 133 4.2 - - {7.0)
Total Commedity Derivatives 8.6  287.8 (562.9)  (232.2)
Interest Rate and Currency Swap
Deferced asset 0.1 14.0 | Deferred Hability (20.5)
Yotal Donivatives 716 ] 3015 (68341 | (232.9)
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Fair Values of Derivative Instruments - Income Statement

{in millions of dollars) o
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging [nstrument

under Statement 133 YTD Movement

Muarch 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

Gas Contracts:

Cias Futures Contract - Regulatory Asset 3 {833) % (85.3) b -
Gas Swap Contract - Regulatory Asset (190.7) (207.3) (16.6)
Gas Option Contract - Regulatory Asset (1.2) (1.4) (0.2}
Gas Purchase Contract - Regulatory Asset 113 (50.3) (61.6)
Gas Futures Contract - Regllatory Liability (27.5) 35 3.0
PP Gas Contract - Rogulatory Liability (107 - 10.7
(s Swap Contract - Regulatory Liability (110.0) 5.5 125.5
Gas Option Contract - Regulatory Liability 2.1 0.1 22
(ias Purchase Contract - Regulatory Liability (68.2) 36.8 105,0
Gas Sublotal (484.3) (288.4) 196.0
Electric Confracts:
Electric Futures Contract - Regulatory Asset 0.0 (IR} -
IPP Electric Contract - Regulatory Asset 51.1 “ 5Ly
Electric Swap Contract - Requlatory Asset (42.5) (42.%) -
Electric Purchase Contract - Regulatory Asset {80.4) (174.5) 94.2)
_Electric Futures Contract - Regulatory Liability {10.3) 0.0 10.3
Elecirle Subtorai (82.1) 217.0) (1349
Subtotal b (566.4) $ (5054) % 610

Gas Contracts:
Gas Swap - Other Income (Deduction) § (1.8 % (0.5 b 1.2
Gas Purchase - Other Income (Deduction) 2.2 1.1 (1.n
Gas Swap - Other Revenues 0.2 0.1 {0.1)
Gas Subtotal o 0.6 0.7 0.1
Oil Contracts:
Oil Swap - Other Income {Deduction) (0.0) 0.9} 0.3)
Ol Subtotal {0.6) (0.9} (0.3}
Electric Contracts:
Electric Swap - Fuel and Purchased Power (1.6) - 1.6
Electric Subtotal (1.6} - 1.6
___Subioial {1.5) {0.2) 1.3
Total Commadity Derlvatives ) (567.9) § (505.6) &% 62.3
Interest Rate and Currency Swap
Other interest expense 3 191 § {104y § 4.0
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Sinee SFAS 71 accounting treatment is currently being applied to most derivative financial
instruments, movements in the fair value of these instruments are recorded as a regulatory asset

or liability, rather than through the income statement.

Falr ¥atues of Derivative Instruments - Cash flaw Hesdging

{in millions of dollurs)

Loeatien of Gainor |Amount of Gain or

Location of gain or {Loss)
Recopnieed in Income on

Amount of Gain or {Loss)
Recognized in Incoine on

Derivative in Ardount of Goin or (Loss) Recongized | (Loss) Reclassified  }(Loss) Reelassitied  [Derivative (Ineffective Derivative (Ineflective

Statememt 133 Cash [in Accumutated Other Comprehensive | from AGCH inte from AQCH into Portion and Amount {irortion and Amount

Flow Hedying Income {AOCI) on Derivative Iacome (Bffective  [Income (Eifective Bxcluded from Ex¢huded from

Relationships {Ellective Portion} Portion ) Pattion) LEifectiveness Testing) Effectiveness Testing)
h 31, 2000 March 31, 2008 [Mnrch 3, 2609 March 31, 2009

Agcumulated Other
Comprebensive
Iigoms

Orher Income

{7.0) Gias Revenue [¢R {Deductions)

[(AD]

Totat [¢R)]

Certain of NGUSA’s derivative instruments contain provisions that require NGUSA’s debt to
maintain an investment grade credit rating (rom cach of the major credit rating agencies. If
NGUSA’s credit rating were to fall below a certain level, it would be in violation of these
provisions, and the counterparties to the derivative instruments could request immediate and
ongoing full overnight collateralization on derivative instruments in net liability positions. The
aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that
are in a liability position on March 31, 2009 is $251.5 million for which NGUSA has posted
collateral of $38.7 million. If NGUSA’s credit rating were to be downgraded by one notch, it
would be required to post $77 million additional collateral. If NGUSA’s credit rating were to be
downgraded by three notches, it would be required 1o post § 194.5 miltion additional collateral lo
its counterparties.

Credit and Collateral

Derivative contracts are primarily used to manage exposure to market risk arising from changes
in commodity prices and interest rates, In the event of non-performance by a counterparty to a
derivative contract, the desired impact may not be achieved. The risk of counterparty non-
performance is generally considered a credit risk and is actively managed by assessing each
counterparty credit profile and negotiating appropriate levels of collateral and credit support. In
instances where the counterparties’ credit quality has declined, or credit exposure exceeds certain
levels, we may limit our credit exposure by testricting new transactions with counterparties,
requiring additional collateral or credit support and negotiating the early termination of certain
agreements. At March 31, 2009, the company has received $3.4 million from, and paid $129.5
million to its counterparties as collateral associated with outstanding derivative contracts,

Falr Value Measurements

Effective April 1, 2008, National Grid adopted, SFAS 157 “Fair Value Measurements”, which
requires expanded disclosure for asscts and liabilities that are recorded on the Congolidated
Balance Sheet at fair value, The adoption of SFAS 137 for fair value on a recurring basis has
been applied to commodity derivative and available for sale securitics valuation. SFAS 157 has
been applied prospectively from April 1, 2008, except for limited retrospective application to
selected items including financial instruments that were measured at fair value using the
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transaction price in accordance with the requirements of Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF)
Issue No. 02-3, “Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative Contracts Held for Trading
Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities.” Day one
gains and losses previously deferred under EITF Issue No. (02-3 should be recorded as a
cumulative effect adjustment to regulatory assets / liabilities at the date of adoption. As of April
1, 2008, KeySpan recorded a non-cash reduction to derivative asset of $ 18.8 million relating to
certain long term LNG contracts.  Since these contracts are related to our regulated gas
distribution operations, the cumulative effect adjustment has been recorded as a regulatory
liability. National Grid primarily applies the market and income approach for recurring fair value
measurements and valuation techniques to maximize observable inputs. National Grid has
elected to defer the adoption of SFAS 157 for nonrecurring fair value measurement disclosures
of non-financial assets and liabilities until April 1, 2009.

As defined in SFAS 157, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assct or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
- exit price. To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements, SFAS
No. 157 establishes a fair value hicrarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation technigues used
to measure fair value into three levels as follows:

e Level I — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that a company has the ability to access as of the reporting date. Derivative assets and
liabilities utilizing Level 1 inputs include active exchange-based derivatives (e.g. natural
gas futures traded on NYMEX).

¢ Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices inchluded within Level 1 that are directly
observable for the asset or liability or indirectly observable through corroboration with
observable market data, Derivative assets and liabilities utilizing Level 2 inputs include
non-exchanged-based financial contracts (e.g. OTC gas financial swap) and standard
NAESB physical gas supply contracts.

¢ Level 3 — unobservable inputs, such as internally-developed pricing models for the asset
or liability due to little or no market activity for the asset or liability with low correlation
to observable market inputs. Derivative assets and liabilities utilizing Level 3 inputs are
mainly customized physical gas contracts, certain financial contracts, as well as some
standard physical gas supply contracts and over the counter financial options contragts.

The determination of the fair value incorporates various factors required under SFAS No. 157.
These factors include not only the credit standing of the counterparties involved but also the
impact of National Grid’s nonperformance risk on its liabilities.

Dierivatives — we enter into a variety of derivative instruments to include both exchange traded
and OTC power and gas forwards, options and swaps.

Our level 1 fair value dertvative instruments primarily consist of natural gas futures traded on the
NYMEX. There is no liquidity or ¢credit reserve associated with such trades, and no discounting
as well,

Our level 2 fair value derivative instruments primarily consist of our power and gas OTC swaps
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as well as NYMEX swaps and forward physical gas deals where market data for pricing inputs is
observable. We obtain our level 2 pricing inputs from NYMEX and Platts mark-to-market when
it can be verified by available market data from Intercontinental Exchange. Our level 2
derivative instruments may utilize discounting based on quoted interest rate curve as well as have
liquidity reserve calculated based on bid/ask spread. Substantially all of these price curves are
observable in the marketplace throughout at lcast 95% of the remaining contractual quantity, or
they could be constructed from market observable curves with correlation coefficients of 0.95 or
higher.

Our level 3 fair value derivative instruments primarily consist of our gas OTC forwards, options,
and physical gas or power transactions where pricing inputs are unobservable, as well as other
complex and structured transactions. Complex or structured {ransactions can introduce the need
for internally-developed models based on reasonable assumptions.  Industry-standard valuation
techniques, such as Black-Scholes pricing model, Monte Carlo simulation, and FEA libraries are
used for valuing such instruments, The value is categorized as level 3. Level 3 is also applied in
cases when forward curve is extrapolated or derived from market observable curve with
correlation coefficients less than 0,95, or optionality is present, or non-gconomical assumptions
are made.

Available for sale securities are primarily equity investments based on quoted market prices and
municipal and corporate bonds based on quoted prices of similar traded assets in open markets,

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value on the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet on a recutring basis and their level within the fair value
hierarchy at March 31, 2009:

(in millions of dollars) Balance at
Contracts Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Marh 31, 2009

Available for sale securities:

Assels b 826 8 1158 § - $ 198.4
Commodity derivative instruments:

Assets $ - 3 140 $ 475 § 61.5
Linbilities (81.3) (248.3) (233.3) (562.9)
Total derivative net assots $§ (813§  (2343) 8  (1858) § (501.4)

Interest rate and currency swap!

Assets $ - $ 101§ . ¥ 101
Liabilities - (203 - {20.5)
Tota] derivative net assets 5 - 3 (10.4) § - 3 (104)
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The following table presents the fair value reconciliation of level 3 assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the twelve months ended March 31, 2009:

Year to Date Level 3 Movement Table

{in millions of doliars)

Balance at March 31, 2008 § (647
Total realized {gains) losses included in net income -

Total unrealized gains (losses) included in other comprehensive income 11.1
Total realized (gains) losses refunded to or collected from ratepayers {32.1) (&)
Purchase, sales and issuances of new positions, net 68 (b
Transfers in and out of level 3 6.9} (£)
Level 3 balance at March 31, 2009 (185.8)

The amount of realized gains and (losses) included in net income attributed to the
change in unrealized gains and (losses) related to derivative assets and liabilities
at March 31, 2009 $ -

s
e ]

(a) The realized portion is the mark-to-market amount as of the beginning of each period that
settled by the end of the period. Reserves and collaterals are included in the unrealized
portion.

(b) The Mark-to-Market amount as of the end of this period for transactions that started after
last period.

(¢) The amount of $6.9 million was transferred out of Level 3 to Level 2 as of September 30,
2008.

NOTE F - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Summary

The Company and its subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all
employees. The pension plans are non-contributory and tax qualified defined benefit plans which
provide all employees with a minimur retirement benefit, Benefits are based on compensation
and / or years of service,

The Company and its subsidiaries have defined benefit postretirement benefit plans other than
pensions (PBOP) which provide health care and lifc insurance coverage to eligible retired
eraployees. Eligibility is based on age and length of service requirement and, in most cases,
retirees must contribute 1o the cost of their coverage.

Supplemental nonqualified, non-contributory executive retirement programs provide additional

defined pension benefits for certain executives. A similar retirement program is provided to non-
executive employees who have compensation or benefits in excess of the qualified plan limits.
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The Company and ils subsidiaries also offer employees a defined contribution plan. Plans arc
available to all eligible employces. Eligible employees contributing to the plans may receive
certain employer contributions including matching contributions.

New York based pension and PBOP plans amortize prior service costs and gains and losses over
a 10 year period calculated on a vintage year basis as required by the regulatory policy.

Funding Policy

The pension contribution for any one year will not be less than the minimum amount required
under the Pension Protection Act of 2006 and is expected to exceed the minimum required
contribution amounts. For PBOP plans, funding is made in accordance with the requirements of
the various regulatory jurisdictions within which the Company operates.

Plan Assets
The target asset allocations for the benefit plans at March 31 are:

Pension Benefits  Non-Union PBOP Union PBOP

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
1.8, equities 30% 42% 37% 33% 49%, 49%
(ilobal equities (including U.S.) T% 3% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Global tactical asset allocation T% T% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Non-U.8, equities 11% 13% 17% 17% 21% 21%
Fixed income 40% 31% 45% 50% 28% 28%
Private equity and other 5% 4% 1% 0% 2% 2%

100%  100% 100%  100%  100%  100%

The percentage of the fair value of total plan assets at March 31 is:

Pension Benefits  Noa-Union PROP Union PBOP

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
U.S. equities 30% 40% 42% 30% 48% 46%
Global equities (including U.8.) 5% % 0% 0% 0% 0%
Global tactical asset allocation T% 7% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Non-11.8. equities 10% 14% 12% 15% 20% 2%
Fixed income 41% 31% 44% 55% 30% 3%
Private equity and other 7% 5% 2% 0% 2% 2%

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

The Company manages benefit plan investments to minimize the long-term cost of operating the
plans, with a reasonable level of risk. Risk tolerance is determined as a result of a periodic
asset/liability study which analyzes plan liabilities and plan funded status and results in the
determination of the allocation of assets across equity and fixed income securities. During the
year, the Company lowered its overall targeted cquity allocation for its pension assets which
resulted in a shift from U.8. equitics fo fixed income securities. Equity investments are broadly
diversified across U.S. and non-U.S. stocks, as well as across growth, value, and small and large
capitalization stocks. Likewise, the fixed income portfolio is broadly diversified across the
vatious fixed income market segments. Small investments are also held in private equity funds
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with the objective of enhancing long-term returns while improving pottfolio diversification. For
the PBOP plans, since the earnings on a portion of the assets are taxable, those investments are
managed to maximize after tax returns consistent with the broad asset class parameters
established by the asset allocalion study. Investment risk and return are reviewed by the
Company investment comimittee on a quarterly basis.

The discount rate is the rate at which plan obligations can be settled. The discount rate
assumption is based on rates of return on high quality fixed income investments in the market
place as of each measurement date (typically March 31), Specifically, the Company uses the
Citigroup Pension Discount Curve along with the expected future cash flows from the retirement
plans to determine the weighted average discount rate assumptions.

The estimated rate of retun for various passive asset classes is based on both analysis of
historical rates of return and forward looking analysis of risk premiums and yields. Current
market conditions, such as inflation and interest rates, are evaluated in connection with the
selting of the long-term assumption. A small premium is added for active management and
rebalancing of both equity and fixed income. The rates of return for each asset class are then
weighted in accordance with the plans’ year end target asset allocation, and the resulting long-
term return on asset rate is then applied to the market-related value of assets.

Assumptions Used for Benefits Accounting
The following weighted average assumptions were used to determine the pension and PBOP
benefit obligations and net periodic benefit costs for the fiscal years ending March 31.

Pension benefits

Beunefit obligation Net periedic beneflf costs
2009 2008 2009 - 2008
Discount rate T1.30% 6,50% 6.50% 6.00% - 6.50%
Rate of compensation increase 3.50%  3.50%-4.00%  3.50%-4.00% 3.50%-5.00%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets n/a n/a 8.00% 8.00%
PBROP
Benefit obligation Net periodic benefit costs
2009 " 2008 2009 2008
Discount rate 7.30% 6.50% 6.50% 6.00% - 6.50%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets nfa n/a 6.75% - 8.25%  7.00% - 8.25%
Health care cost trend rate
Initial - pre 65 R.50% 9.00% 4.00% 9.00% - 9.50%
Initial - post 65 9.50% 10.00% 16.00% 10.00% - 10.50%
Ultimate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Year ultimate rate reached - pre 63 2015 2014 2014 2012
Yeuar ultimate rato reached - post 63 2016 2015 2015 2013

The expected coniributions to the Company’s pension and PBOP plans during fiscal year 2010
are $698 million.

54




Pension Benefits

The Company’s net periodic benefit cost for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008

included the following components:

(i millions of dollars) 2009 2608
Service Cost $ 111.8 3 93.2
interest Cost 351.0 276.1
Expected return on plan assets (417,0) (322.7)
Amortization of prior service ¢ost 5.6 5.0
“Amortization of loss 67.0 61.8
Net period benefit costs before settlements and curtailments 118.4 1134
Settlement and curtatlment loss - 0.7
Special termination benefits (VERO) 5.7 50.3
Net periodic benefit cost $ 194.1 $ 164.4

The following tables provide the accumulated benefit obligation and the changes in the funded

status of the pension plans at March 31;

(in millions of doliars) 2009 2008
Accomulated benefit obligation b {4,794.9) $ (5,027.6)
Reconciliation of benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of period {5,530.0) (2,897.2)
Service cost (111.8) (93.2)
Interest cost (351.0) (276.1)
Actuarial gain (loss) 379.2 163.4
Benefits paid 442.3 364.8
Plan amendments - (8.4)
Setitements and special termination benefits (33.1) {41.8)
Acquisition - (2,741.5)
Benefif obligation at end of period o (8,224.4) (5,530.0)
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 5,077.4 2,494.8
Actual return on plan assets (1,331.7) (110.9)
Company contributions 478.4 437.8
Benefits paid {442.3) (364.8)
Settlements (26.3) (0.7
Acquigition - 2,621.2
Fair value of plan assets af end of period 3,755.5 5,077.4
Funded status $ (1,468.9) I (452.6)

On August 24, 2007; the Company acquired KeySpan. In connection with this acquisition, the
assets and benefit obligations of the plans increased in the amounts of $2.6 billion and $2.7

billion, respectively, during the fiscal year ending March 31, 2008,
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As of March 31, amounts recognized on the balance sheets consist of:

(in millions of dollars) 2009 2008
Current pension liability $ G321 $ (19.1)
Non-current pension liability {1,436.2) (433.5)
Net amount recognized . (1,468.9) § 14526

Gn millions of dollars) 2009 2008
Amount recognized in AOCI cousist of:

Net actuarial loss $  2,0833 $ 7859
Prior service cost 41.9 47.5
Net amount recognized § 02,0252 + 3 8334 +

*As a result of deferral accounting treatment mandated by various state regulatory authoritics,
$889.6 million of this amount is reflected in regulatory assets on the Consolidated Balance
sheet. The estimated net actuarial loss and prior service cost for the defined benefit pension
plans that will be amortized during fiscal year 2010 are $171 million and $5 million,
respectively.

The following pension benefit payments are expected to be paid:

(in millions of dollars) Pension benefits
2010 $ 401.6
2011 $ 396.8
2012 b} 407.5
2043 5 430.1
2014 3 441.5
2015-2019 b 2,338.9

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company also has several defined contribution pension plans (primarily section 401(k)
employee savings fund plans) that cover substantially all employees. Employer matching
contributions of approximately $30 million and $27 million were expensed in fiscal year 2009

and 2008, respectively.
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Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions
The Company’s total net periodic benefit cost of PBOPs for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2009 and 2008 included the following components:

{in millions of dollars) _ 2009 2008
Service cost 3 493 3% 42.6
Interest cost 220.2 1747
Expected return on plan assefs (113.9 (101.7)
Amortization of prior service cost 13.3 13.3
Amortization of net loss 50,4 44.3
Net periodic benefit cost before special termination benefits 219.3 173.2
Special termination benefits (VERO) 1.6 1.4
Net periodic benefit cost $ 2209 § [74.6

The following tables provide the changes in the funded status of the PBOP plans at March 31;

{in millions of dotlars) 2009 2008
Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of period $ (3.540.2) $ (2,216.0)
Service cost (49.3) {42.6)
Interest cost (220.2) (1741
Actuarial loss 331.2 19.0
Benefits paid 177.8 15715
Medicare subsidy (0.5) (2.2)
Plan amendments - 0.2)
Curtailment - 7.4
Special termination benefits (VERO) (1.6) (1.5)
Acqguisitions - (1,286.9)
Benefit obiigatian at end of period (3,302.8) (3,540.2)
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 1,474.2 1,044.7
Actual return on plan assets (461.1) {32.8)
Company contributions 142.0 93.4
Benefits paid (177.8) (153.8)
Acquisitions - 522.1
Fair value of plan assets at end of period £,037.3 1,474.2
Funded siatus 8§ {2,265.5) $ (2,066.0)

On August 24, 2007, the Company acquired KeySpan, In connection with this acquisition, the
assets and benefit obligations of the PBOP plans increased by $523 million and $1.3 billion,
respectively, during fiscal year ending March 31, 2008.
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As of March 31, amounts recognized on the balance sheets consist of

(in millions of dollars) 2009 2608

Current liabilities $ (10.0) b -
Noncurrent labilities (2,255.5) (2,066.0)
Net amount recognized $ (2,255 $ (2,066.0)

As of March 31, amounts recognized in regulatory assets and accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), before taxes, consist of:

{in millions of dollars) 2009 2008
Amount recognized in AOCI consist of:

Net actuarial loss § 7266 $ 5859
Propr service cost 79.9 93.3
Net amount recognized $ 8065 * § 6791 *

*As a result of deferral accounting treatment mandated by various state regulatory authorities,
$394.3 million of this amount is reflected in regulatory assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
The estimated net actuarial loss and prior service cost for the PBOP plans that will be amortized
during fiscal year 2010 are estimated to be $61 million and $13 million, respectively.

As a result of the Medicare Act of 2003, the Company receives a federal subsidy for sponsoring
a retiree healthcare plan that provides a benefit that is actvarially equivalent to Medicare Part D.

The following PBOP benefit payments expected to be paid and subsidies expected 1o be
received from the U.S. Federal Government, which reflect expected future services as
appropriatc are;

{in millious of dollars) Payments Subsidies

2010 3 199.2 $ IERY
2011 b 2123 $ 13.0
2012 $ 2240 § 14.3
2013 3 2338 $ 15.7
2014 $ 2439 $ 16.9
2015-2019 $ 1,352.6 $ 93.6
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The assumptions used in health care cost trends have a significant effect on the amounts
reported. A one percent change in the assumed rates would have the following effects:

(in millions of dollarg) 2009
Increase 1%

Total of service cost plus interest cost $ 41.1

Postretirement benefit obligation $ 4227
Decrease 1%

Total of service cost plus interest cost £ (34.3)

Postretirement benefit obligation $ (364.7)

Special Termination Benefits {Voluntary Early Retirement Offer)

In connection with National Grid ple’s acquisition of KeySpan, which was completed on August
24, 2007. National Grid ple and KeySpan offered certain non-union employees voluntary early
retirement offer (VERQ) packages in June 2007 in an effort to achieve necessary staff reduction
through voluntary means; 560 employees enrolled in the VERO. Employees enrolled in the early
retirement program will retire between Qctober 1, 2007 and October 1, 2010. The cost of the
VERO program is expected to be $147 million, The Company recorded $69 million and $49
million of VERO costs for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Additional VERO packages were offered to 80 employees during the fiscal year ending March
31, 2009, Of the eligible employees, 70 enrolled in these VEROs. Employees enrolled in the
early retirement program will retire by between October 1, 2008 and December 1, 2009. The
Company recorded costs of approximately $9 million related to these voluntary plans,

In March 2009, an additional VERO offer was made to 38 employees. The window for
acceptance of these voluntary termination benefits will close in June 2009, As of March 31, 2009
no costs were recorded related to this VERO offer. Estimated pension and PBOP costs associated
with this offer are expected to be between $2 million and $5 million.

NOTE G - INCOME TAXES
The following is a summary of the components of federal and state income tax and reconciliation

between the amount of federal income tax expense reported in the Consolidated Statements of
Income and the computed amount at the statutory level.
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Total income taxes from continuing operations in the consolidated statements of income are as
follows:

. For the year ended March 31,
(in millions of dollars) 2009 2008
Components of federal and state income taxes:

Current tax expense:

Federal 8 WA 354.4

State 2726 67.5
Total current income taxes - $ 106338 B 4219
Deferred tax expense (benefit):

Federal $ (555.7y % (74.3)

State (187.6) (2.3)
Total deferred income taxes ¥ {143.3) {76.6)
Total income tax expense $ 3205 § 345.3

The income tax amounts included in the Statements of Income differ from the amounts that
result from applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income before income tax. The
following is a reconciliation between reported income tax and tax computed at the statutory rate
of 35%:

For the yoar ended March 31,

(in millions of dolars) 2409 2008
Computed tax at statutory rate $ 2707 % 3375
Increases (reductions) in tax resulting from:
State income tax, net of federal income tax benefit 84.7 3990
Book/tax depreciation not normalized 18.2 16.1
Intercompany tax sharing adjustiment (2.3) (17.5)
Medicare subsidy {14.5) {13.5%)
Cost of removal 9.4 aon
Amortization of investment tax credit, net {6.8) (6.2)
Provision to return adjustments (7.0) (2.5)
Tax audit and related reserve movements 10.8 -
Change in cash surrender value 13.2 -
All other difforences (7.1) 1.6
Total lncome taxes ) 3265 § 3453
Effective tax rate B 41% 36%
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At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the significant components of Company’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities calculated under the provisions of SFAS No.109 “Accounting for Income Taxes” were
as follows:

At March 31,

(in millions of dollars) - 2009 2008
Property related differences § 30091 % 2,821.2
Merger rate plan stranded costs 546.4 687.1
Property taxes 76.7 75.9
Investment Tax Credit 59,7 66.7
Employee benefits compensation (1,052.9) (701.5)
Reserves not currently deducted {182,7) {(194.7)
Regulatory Assets 34.6 (89.3)
Environmental costs 65.6 24.5
Other items-net (431.0) {451.1)
Net deferred tax liability (asset) o 2,125.8 2,238.8

Current deferred tax assot (218.5) (188.5)
Non-current deferred tax liability $ 23449 % 2,427.3

Subsequent to the finalization of the purchase accounting exercise one year following the
acquisition of KeySpan by National Grid ple, we performed a detailed review and reconciliation
exercisc of all tax related balances that resulted in further adjustments to goodwill being
recorded. In aggregate the adjustments resulted in a $22 million adjustment to the provisional
goodwill balance and other balance sheet accounts by like amounts that were reported on the
March 2008 Consolidated Balance Sheet. This $22 million adjustment, as well as other purchase
accounting entries, is reflected in the Financial Statements for the twelve months ended March
31, 2009, For further information on all purchase accounting entries please see Note L
“Acguisitions.”

The Company has a deferred tax asset of approximately $56 million for losses of $590 million
incurred by NGUSA or its subsidiaries in the state of Massachusetts that are carried forward to
offset future earnings of the Company. Valuation allowances have been established for the full
amount of these loss carry forwards as the Company believes that the losses will not be utilized
in the foresceable future, As of March 31, 2009, these state net operating losses expire between
2011 and 2015,

In July 2006, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation (FIN) 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes,” which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the
financial statements in accordance with SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” FIN 48
provides that a tax benefit from an uncertain tax position may be recognized when it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, assuming the taxing
authority has full knowledge of all relevant information and that any dispute with a taxing
authority is resolved by the court of last resort. Income tax positions must meet a more-likely-
than-not recognition threshold at the effective date to be recognized upon the adoption of FIN 48
and in subsequent periods. Recognized tax benefits are measured as the largest amount of tax
benefit that is more likely than not to be realized upon settlement with the taxing authority,
assuming the taxing authority has full knowledge of all relevant information.
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The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on April 1, 2007. As & result of the
implementation of FIN 48, the Company recognized approximately a $92 million increase in the
liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which was accounted for as a reduction in retained
carnings of $10.2 million, an increase to deferred tax assets of $32.3 million, and an increase to
goodwill of $49.5 million to reflect the measurement under the rules of FIN 48 of uncertain tax
positions related to previous business combinations. As of March 31, 2009 and 2008, the
Company’s unrecognized tax benefits totaled $539.4 million and $474.7 million, respectively, of
which $158.5 million and $126.5 million would impact the effective tax rate, if recognized,

The following table reconciles the changes to the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits for the
years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Reconciliation of Unrecognized Tax Benefits At March 31,

(In millions of dollars) 2009 2008
Beginning balance $ 4747 $ 933
Ciross increases (decreases) related to prior period 54.9 .
Gross increases (decreases) related to current period 18.9 24,0
Settlements with tax authoritics 9.1) 15.0
Acquisitions* ~ 3424
Ending balance at March 31, 2009 o $ 5394 § 4747

*On August 24, 2007, the Company acquired KeySpan. In connection with this acquisition,
KeySpan’s tax liabilities, including Habilities for unrecognized tax benefits, were assumed by the
Company.

As of March 31, 2009, the Company has accrued for total interest of $96.4 million. During the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, the Company recorded interest expense of $42.2 million,
Effective as of April 1, 2007, the Company recognizes interest accrued related to uncertain tax
positions in inferest income or interest expense and related penalties if applicable in operating
expenses, In prior reporting periods, the Company recognized such accrued interest and penalties
in income tax expense. No penalties were recognized during the fiscal year ended March 31,
2009,

The Company and it’s subsidiaries participates in filing a federal consolidated return with it’s
parent National Grid Holdings, Inc. (“NGHI”). Subsequent to KeySpan’s acquisition on August
24, 2007, KeySpan also participates in the National Grid Holdings, Inc. (“NGHI”) consolidated
return, Federal income tax returns have been examined and all appeals and issues have been
agreed with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and the NGHI consolidated filing group,
excluding KeySpan, through March 31, 2002, During fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, NGHI
consolidated group, excluding KeySpan, settled certain proposed IRS audit adjustments related
to fiscal years ending March 31, 2003 and March 31, 2004 with the IRS Office of Appeals and is
awaiting finalization of the settlement agreement, The Company expeets to make a cash tax
payment to the IRS within the next twelve months related to the 2003-2004 setilement. At that
time, the Company expects to decrease its total gross unrecognized tax benefits by $79.3 million.
The IRS is currently auditing the federal NGHI consolidated income tax returns, excluding
KeySpan, which include the Company for March 31, 2005 through March 31, 2007. The fiscal
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year ended March 31, 2008, which includes KeySpan, remains subject to examination by the
RS,

The IRS has alse commenced the examination of KeySpan’s consolidated income tax returns for
the years ended December 31, 2000 through 2006.

The Company and its subsidiaries file unitary or separate returns with various state authorities
including New York, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Connecticut, Vermont, Maine, West
Virginia, and South Carolina, These returns are subject to examination for the years open under
the statue of limitations.

In 2008, New York State has recently completed its audit, without change, of National Grid USA
Service Company’s separate company returns for the fiscal years ending March 31, 2003 through
March 31, 2005, During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, the State of New York completed
its audit of fiscal years ending March 31, 2003 through March 31, 2005 for Niagara Mohawk. As
a result, the Company paid $4.8 million of its total gross unrecognized tax benefits, The fiscal
years ending March 31, 2006 through March 31, 2008 remain subject to examination by New
York State, and it is anticipated that the next audit cycle including the open years will commence
during the next fiscal year. In addition, the Massachusetts Department of Revenue is conducting
a ficld audit of the Company’s Combined Returns for March 31, 2003 through March 31, 2005,
The Company is also in the process of appealing adjustments made by the Massachusetts
Department of Revenue in a previous audit of its Massachusetts Combined Returns for January
1, 2000 through March 31, 2002,

The Company’s, excluding the KeySpan acquired companies, fiscal years ended prior to March
31, 2004 are no longer subject to cxamination by federal or state authorities in the major
jurisdictions in which the Company operates, The following table indicates the earliest KeySpan
tax year subject to examination for each major jurisdiction:

Jurisdiction Tax Year
Federal 2000
New York State 2000
California 2004
Massachuseits 2005
New Hampshire 2005
West Virginia 2005

On July 2, 2008, the state of Massachusetts changed the state filing requirements that will
eliminate the previous separate reporting filing rules and implement a unitary group filing
requirement. The new combined reporting rules are effective for tax years beginning on or after
January 1, 2009. This change does not have a material effect on the 2009 financial statements.
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NOTE H - LONG-TERM DEBT

European Medium Term Note Progran:

At March 31, 2009, NGUSA had a Euro Medium Term Note program (the Program) under
which it is able to issue debt instruments (Instruments) up to a total of the equivalent of 4 billion
Euro. At March 31, 2009, $93.2 million of these notes were issued and outstanding, including the
impact of interest rate and currency swaps. Interest rates at March 31, 2009 ranged from 0.40%
t0 4.61%. At March 31, 2008, $159 million of these notes were outstanding with interest rates
ranging from 3.55% to 5.51%.

Instruments issued under the Program are admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange.
The Program commenced in December 2007 and is expected to be renewed annually for the
foreseeable future, The funds raised under the Program may be used for general corporate
purposes. Instruments may be issued in bearer form in any currency, with maturities ranging
from one month to perpetuity. Instruments may not be offered, sold or delivered within the
United States (US) or to a US person except in certain limited circumstances permitted by US
regulations. Any fees associated with issuing Instruments under the Program are negotiated with
the bank(s) managing the issuance at the time, Instruments issued under the Program rank pari
passu with each other and with all other unsecured debt obligations of the Company, except to
the extent that the other debt obligations may be subordinated, Instruments carry certain positive
and negative covenants, including a restriction on the Company’s ability to mortgage, pledge,
charge or otherwise encumber its assets in order to sccure, guarantee or indemnify other listed or
quoted debt obligations, as well as cross-acceleration in the event of breach by the Company or
its principal subsidiaries of other listed or quoted debt obligations. At March 31, 2009, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants. :

Notes Payable:

At March 31, 2009, the Company had outstanding $1,533.0 million of secured medium and long-
term notes with interest rates ranging from 6.80% to 9.75% and maturity dates ranging from
2010 through 2030,

Additionally, the Company had outstanding $1,157.9 million and $1.163.4 million of unsecured
medium and long-term notes at March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  The interest rates on
these unsecured notes ranged from 4.65% to 9.41% and the maturity dates extend from 2013
through 2035, This includes a $15 million long-term debt that has certain restrictive covenants
and acceleration clauses, These covenants stipulate that note-holders may declare the debt to be
due and payable if total debt becomes greater than 70% of total capitalization, At March 31,
2009, the total long-term debt was 17% of total capitalization. Additionally, some of these bonds
have a sinking fund requirement which totaled $5.5 million during the fiscal year ended March
31, 2009,

At March 31, 2008, the Company had $3,456.3 million of secured and unsecured medium and
long-term notes outstanding with interest rates ranging beiween 4.65% and 9.75%.

The Company repaid a $600 million Senior Note with an interest rate of 7.75% on Qctober 1,
2008 and $160 million note with an interest rate of 4.90% on May 16, 2008,
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Gas Facilities Revenne Bonds:

At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had outstanding $640.5 million of tax exempt gas
utility revenue bonds, The Company can issue tax-exempt bonds through the New York State
Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA). Whenever bonds are issued for new
gas facilities projects, proceeds are deposited in trust and subsequently withdrawn to finance
qualified expenditures. There are no sinking fund requirements on any of our Gas Facilities
Revenue Bonds (GFRBs). Of the $640.5 million, $230.0 million was variable rate serics due
through July 1, 2026. The interest rate is reset weekly and ranged from 0.83% to 11.0% for the
twelve months ended March 31, 2009. For the twelve months ended March 3 1, 2008, the interest
rates ranged from 3.00% to 6.27%. The variable-rate auction bonds are currently in the auction
rate mode and are backed by bond insurance. The recent turmoil in the auction rate markets has
led to widespread auction failures. In the case of a failed auction, the resulting interest rate on
the bonds would revert to the maximum rate which depends on the cutrent commercial paper
rates and the senior unsecured rating of the Company’s subsidiary, Brooklyn Union or the bond
insurer, whichever is greater. To date, the effect on interest expense has not been material.

Promissory Notes to LIPA:

Certaint of the Company’s subsidiaries issued promissory notes to LIPA to support certain debt
obligations assumed by LIPA in May 1998. At March 31, 2009 and 2008, $155.4 million of
promissory notes remained outstanding with maturity dates between 2016 and 2025, Interest rate
ranges from 5.15% to 5.30%. Under these promissory notes, the Company is required to obtain
letters of credit to secure its payment obligations if its long-term debt is not rated at least in the
“A” range by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating agencies. At March 31, 2009,
the Company was in compliance with this requirement,

First Mortgage Bonds:

At March 31, 2009, the Company had outstanding $133.4 million of first mortgage bonds.
Certain of the first mortgage bond indentures include, among other provisions, limitations on: (i)
the issuance of long-term debt; (ii) engaging in additional lease obligations; (iii) annual sinking
fund requirements of $1.6 million and, (iv) the payment of dividends from retained earnings. At
March 31, 2009, these bonds remain outstanding and have interest rates ranging from 6.34% to
9.63% and maturity ranging from 2018 to 2028. At March 31, 2008, $205.1 of first mortgage
bonds were outstanding with interest rates ranging from 5.72% to 10.25%. The Company repaid
$71.7 million of First Mortgage Bonds on their maturity dates through March 2009.

State Authority Financing Bonds:

At March 31, 2009, the Company had outstanding $1.2 billion of State Authority Financing
Bonds - $716.1 million of these bonds were issued through NYSERDA and the remaining
$483.6 million were issued through various other state agencies,

As noted, at March 31, 2009, $716.1 million of State Authority financing notes issued through
NYSERDA were outstanding, Approximately $575 million of the Company’s first mortgage
bonds were issued to secure a like amount of tax-exempt revenue bonds and bear interest at
short-term adjustable interest rates (with an option to convert to other rates, including a fixed
interest rate) which averaged 4.22% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009. The bonds are
currently in the auction rate mode and are backed by bond insurance. The recent turmoil in the
auction rate markets has led to widespread auction fallures. In the case of a failed auction, the
resulting interest rate on the bonds would revert to the maximum rate which depends on the
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current commercial paper rates and the senior secured rating of the Company or the bond insurer,
whichever is greater. The effect on interest expense has not been material at this time.

The Company also has a $75.0 million of 5.15% fixed rate pollution control revenue bonds
issued through NYSERDA which were first callable on November 1, 2008 at 102%. Pursuant to
agreements between NYSERDA and the Company’s subsidiary, proceeds from such issues were
used for the purpose of financing the construction of ceriain pollution control facilities at the
Company’s generation facilities (which was subsequently sold) or to refund outstanding tax-
exempt bonds and notes.

Additionally, the Company’s electric subsidiaries issued two Series A bonds through
NYSERDA. The first one is a $41.1 million of Authority Financing Notes 1999 Series A
Pollution Control Revenue Bonds due October 1, 2028. The interest rate on these notes is reset
based on an auction procedure, The interest rate ranged from 2.00% to 18.00% during the twelve
months ended March 31, 2009, at which time the rate was 6.99%. The second Series A bond is a
$24.9 million variable ratc 1997 Series A Electric Facilities Revenue Bonds due December 1,
2027, The interest rate on these bonds is reset weekly and ranged from 0.40% 1o 8.03% for the
twelve months ended March 31, 2009, at which time the rate was 0.50%.

At March 31, 2009, the Company had outstanding $430.3 million of the Pollution Control
Revenue Bonds in tax exempt commercial paper mode at March 31, 2009 - $410.3 million of
these bonds were issued through Business Finance Authority of the State of New Hampshire, the
Massachusetts Industrial Finance Authority, and the Connecticut Development Authority.
Interest rates ranged from [.70% to 0.96% for the twelve months ended March 31, 2009. There
are no payments or sinking fund requirements due in 2010 through 2014. In addition, the
Company has outstanding a $20 million bond issued through Massachusetts Industrial Finance
Agency. The bond is due on August 1, 2014 with a variable interest rates ranging from 0.65% to
2.40% for the twelve months ended March 31, 2009. The Company repaid $20.0 million on
August 1, 2008. The Company has Standby Bond Purchase Agreements to provide liquidity
support for these bonds. (See “Standby Bond Purchase Agreement” below).

At March 31, 2009, the Company had $53 million of tax exempt Electric Revenue Bonds in
commercial paper mode with variable maturity dates from 2016 through 2042 and variable
interest rates ranging from 0.65% to 2.83% during the twelve months ended March 31, 2009.
The bonds were issued by the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency in connection with
the Company’s financing of its first and second underground and submarine cable projects.
Sinking fund payments of $0.2 million were made during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009,
The Company has Standby Bond Purchase Agreements to provide liquidity support for these
bonds. See “Standby Bond Purchase Agreement” below.

At March 31, 2008, the Company had outstanding $1.2 billion of State Authority Financing
Bonds, Interest rates on the variable rate series ranged from 1,10% to 17.75% in fiscal 2008.

Industrial Development Revenue Bonds

At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had outstanding $128.3 million of tax-exempt
Industrial Development Revenue bonds. Of these bonds, $53.3 million were issued on its behalf
through the Nassau County Industrial Development Authority for the construction of the
Glenwood Energy Center, an clectric-generation peaking plant, and $75 million was issued on its
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behalf by the Suffolk County Industrial Development Authority for the Port Jefferson Energy
Center an electric-generation peaking plant,

Compmitted Facility Agreements:

At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had five committed bank loans outstanding totaling
$543.0 million and $382.5 million, respectively, including the impact from interest rate and
currency swaps. These loans, which mature in 2010 and 2011, are in various currencies and were
used to provide funds for working capital needs. The interest rates on these bank loans are reset
periodically and ranged from 0.40% to 0.55% over issued currency LIBOR rates in both years.

Inter-Company Notes Papable:

At March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had outstanding $1,224.4 million of an inter-
company note duc to an affiliate of the Parent, This note has an interest rate of 5.52% and
matures in November 2010.

Debt Maturity:
The following table reflects the maturity schedule for our debt repayment requirements,
including capitalized leases and related maturities, at March 31, 2009

Long-Term
(in millions of doliars) Debt
Repayment for fiscal years:

2010 b3 471.4

2011 2,267.8

2012 249.6

2013 17.2

2014 2559
Thereafter 3,546.9

$ 6,808.8

The following table depicts the sinking fund requirements.
Sinking fund requirement

(in mitlions)
Repayment for fiscal years:

2010 b 7.1

2011 7.1

S 2012 7.1

2013 7.2

2014 72

Thereafier 23 4

$ 59.4
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Long-term Debi:
The following tables depict the fair value of the Company’s long-term debt at March 31, 2009,

(in miltions of dollars) 2009
European Medium Term Notes $ 92.9
Long-Term Notes 2,523.6
Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds 6102
Promissory Notes to LIPA 147.9
First Mortgage Bonds 127.2
State Authority Financing Bond 1,189.2
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds 109.0
Committed Facilities 529.5
Inter-Company Notes: 1,224.4
¥ 6,553.9

Standby Bond Purchase Agreement:

At March 31, 2009, three of the Company’s subsidiaries had a Standby Bond Purchase facility
with banks totaling $325 million, which is available to provide liquidity support for certain tax-
exempt State Authority Bonds. The fees for the facility are based on cach subsidiary’s credit
rating and are increased or decreased based on a downgrading or upgrading of the entity’s rating,
The current annual facility fee is 0.100% based on Mass Electric’s and NEP’s credit rating of A3
by Moody’s Investor Services and A- by Standard & Poor’s.

The facility contains certain financial covenants that require the Company’s subsidiaries to
maintain a debt to total capitalization ratio of no more than 65% at the last day of each fiscal
quarter. At March 31, 2009, the Company's subsidiaries named in the facility were in
compliance with this covenant. The agrecment expires on November 29, 2009. There were no
borrowings under the standby bond purchase agreement at March 31, 2009,

Credit Facllity Agreements:

At March 31, 2009, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries had a Credit Facility agreement
with a number of banks totaling $355 million. The agreement provides for an aggregate letter of
credit limit of $125 million and a borrowing limit of $230 million for one subsidiary within
which is included a letter of credit limit of $30 million. The facility fee and utilization fee for the
facility arc based on the credit rating of the subsidiaties and is increased or decreased based on a
downgrading or upgrading of the rating, The current annual facility fee is 0.100% and the
utilization fee is 0.125% based on the subsidiaries credit rating of A3 by Moody’s Investor
Services and A- by Standard & Poor’s. The facility contains certain financial covenants that
require the Company and certain of its subsidiaries named in the facility to maintain a debt to
total capitalization ratio of no more than 65% at the last day of each fiscal quarter. At March 31,
2009, the Company and each of its subsidiaries named in the facility were in compliance with
this covenant. The agreement expires on November 29, 2009, At March 31, 2009, $63 million of
letters of credit have been issued.

On January 31, 2008, National Grid ple announced that it would increase its dividend for fiscal
year 2008 by 15% and attempt to grow its dividends 8% per annum thereafter. Following this
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announcement, M(':aody’s Investors Service changed the outlook for National Grid ple and its
rated Sub'SIdIaI’lGS, including the Company’s, debt ratings to negative ountlook from stable due to
the perceived aggressiveness of the dividend policy.

NOTE I - SHORT-TERM DEBT
Commercial Paper and Revolving Credit Agreements

Commercial Paper

At March 31, 2009, the Company has a commercial paper program totaling $2.0 billion. In
addition, the Company has commercial paper program totaling $1.5 billion entered into by
KeySpan prior to acquisition, The KeySpan program is scheduled to fully expire by 2010. The
Company does not intend to issue comamercial paper under the KeySpan’s program and does not
intend to renew these agreements upon their expiration,

NGUSA’s commercial paper program. In support of NGUSA’s commetrcial paper program,
the Company was a named borrower under a credit facility in the name of the Parent totaling
$850 million, with the full amount of the facility being avatlable to the Company. This facility
supports the Parent’s and the Company’s commercial paper programs for ongoing working
capital needs. The facility expires in November 2009,

The credit facility allows both the Parent and the Company to borrow in Stetling or US Dollars
at the appropriate LIBOR rate plus a margin of 0.325% or 0.375% if over 3750 million has been
borrowed under the facility, The current annual fee is 0.09%. We do not anticipate borrowing
against this facility; however, if for any reason we were not able to issue sufficient commercial
paper or source funds from other sources, this facility could be drawn to meet cash requirements.
The facility contains certain affirmative and negative operating covenants, including restrictions
on the Company's utility subsidiaries' ability to mortgage, pledge, encumber or otherwise subject
their utility property (o any lien, as well as financial covenants that require the Company and the
Parent to limit the total indebtedness in US and non-US subsidiaries to pre-defined limits.
Violation of these covenants could result in the termination of the facilitics and the required
repayment of amounts borrowed there under, as well as possible cross defaults under other debt
agreements, At March 31, 2009, the Company was in compliance with all covenants.

Subject to certain conditions set forth in the credit facility, the Parent and the Company have the
right to "Term Out” the facility, whereby they may borrow in total up to the full facility amount
of $850 million and this borrowing may remain outstanding for a further year beyond the
expiration date of the facility. In addition, the Parent has the right to request that the termination
date be extended for an additional period of 364 days prior to each anniversary of the closing
date. This extension option requires the approval of lenders holding more than 50% of the total
commitments to such extension request and only the lenders that consent will have their
commitment extended, Under the agreements, the Parent has the ability to replace non-
consenting lenders with other banks or financial institutions.

At March 31, 2009, there were no borrowings on the National Grid USA commercial paper
program.
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KeySpan’s commercial paper program. In support of KeySpan’s commercial paper program,
at March 31, 2009, KeySpan had two credit facilities totaling $1.5 billion - $920 million expiring
in 2010, and $580 million expiring in 2009, which continue to support KeySpan’s commercial
paper program for ongoing working capital heeds,

The fees for the facilities are based on KeySpan's current credit ralings and are increased or
decreased based on a downgrading or upgrading of its ratings., The current annual facility fee is
0.08%. Both credit facilities allow for KeySpan to borrow using several different types of loans;
specifically, Eurodollar loans, ABR loans, or compstitively bid loans. Eurodollar loans are based
on the Furodollar rate plus a margin that is tied to our applicable credit ratings. We do not
anticipale borrowing against these facilities; however, if for any reason we were not able to issue
sufficient commercial paper or source funds from other sources, this facility could be drawn to
meet cash requirements.

The facilities contain certain affirmative and negative operating covenants, including restrictions
on KeySpan’s ability to mortgage, pledge, encumber or otherwise subject its utility property to
any lien, as well as certain financial covenants that require us to, among other things, maintain a
consolidated indebtedness to consolidated capitalization ratio of no more than 65% at the last day
of any fiscal quarter. Violation of these covenants could result in the termination of the facilities
and the required repayment of amounts borrowed thereunder, as well as possible cross defaults
under other debt agreements. At March 31, 2009, KeySpan was in compliance with all
covenants. '

Subject to certain conditions set forth in the credit facility, KeySpan has the right, at any time, to
increase the commitments under the $920 million facility up to an additional $300 million, In
addition, KeySpan has the right to request that the termination date be extended for an additional
period of 365 days prior to each anniversary of the closing date, This extension option, however,
requires the approval of lenders holding more than 50% of the total commitments to such
extension request. Under the agreements, KeySpan has the ability to replace non-consenting
lenders with other pre-approved banks or financial institutions.

At March 31, 2009, there were no borrowings on the KeySpan commercial paper program, At
March 31, 2008, $286.8 million of commercial paper was outstanding.

Uncommitted Facility Agreements

At March 31, 2009, the Company had uncommitted loan facilitics totaling $720 million available
from five banks. There were no borrowings at March 31, 2009, These facilities provide liquidity
for ongoing working capital needs by allowing the Company to borrow at very short notice,
However, the lenders are not obliged to make a loan under the facilities at any time. The interest
rates are set at the time of issuance and range from 20 basis points to 45 basis points over
LIBOR. Maturities are also set at the time of issuance and differ for from lender to lender.

Inter-company money pool

The Company and subsidiaries operate regulated and unregulated money pools to more
effectively utilize cash resources and to reduce outside short-term borrowings., Shori-term
borrowing needs arc met first by available funds of the money pool participants, Borrowing
companies pay inlerest at a rate designed to approximate the cost of third-party short-term
borrowings. Companies that invest in the money pool share the interest earned on a basis
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proportionate to their average monthly investment in the money pool. Funds may be withdrawn
from or repaid to the pool at any time without prior notice. The Company has the ability to
borrow up to $4 billion from the Parent (through intermediary entities) and ceriain other
subsidiaries of the Parent, including for the purpose of funding the money pool, if necessary, At
March 31, 2009, the Company had borrowed $1.9 billion under this arrangement, Additionally,
the Company has a $100.8 million promissory note outstanding with National Grid Holdings
In¢., the Company’s immediate parent company. At March 31, 2008, the Company had
borrowed $850 million under this arrangement and had a $262 million promissory note
outstanding with National Grid Holdings Inc.

NOTE J - CUMULATIVE PREFERRED STOCK
The Company’s subsidiaries have certain issues of non-participating preferred stock which

provide for redemption at the option of the Company. A sunmary of cumulative preferred stock
at March 31, 2009 and 2008 is as follows (in thousands except for share data and call price):

Shares Amount
Outstanding {in millions of dollars)
March 31, March M, Call
Series Company 2009 2008 2009 2008 Price
$100 par value -
3.40% Series Niagara Mohawk 57,524 57,524 % 57 % 5.7 $ 103500
3.60% Series Niagara Mohawk 137,152 137,139 3.7 13.7 104.850
3.90% Series Niagara Mohawk 95,171 94,967 9.5 9.5 106.000
4,44% Series Mass Electric 22,585 22,585 2.3 2.3 104,068
6.00% Series New England Power 11,117 1,17 1.1 1.1 Noncallable
$50 par value -
4.50% Series Natragansett 49,089 49,089 2.5 2.5 55.000
Total 372,638 372421 § 348 § 348

NOTE K ~ DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

National Grid Wireless (Wireless) was a subsidiary of the Company that owned, operated and
managed towers and other communications structures. Wireless also managed a fiber optic
telecommunications system in the Northeastern United States,

On August 15, 2007, the Company completed the sale of its wireless infrastructure operations for
proceeds of approximately $290 million, The final sale resulted in a pre-tax gain in fiscal 2008
of approximately $24 million primarily reflecting final working capital adjustments and other
adjustments to the estimated selling price,

On August 22, 2007, the NYPSC approved the merger application between KeySpan and
National Grid plc, As a condition of the approval of the KeySpan Acquisition, the Company was
required to divest the Ravenswood Generating Station. In addition, National Grid plec,
determined that the KeySpan telecommunications and engineeting subsidiaries did not fit into
the post-merger business model. As such, the Company exited these businesses. The operating
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results and financial positions of these companies are reflected as discontinued operations on the
Consolidated financial statement in  the appropriate  periods presented, KeySpan's
telecommunications company and one of the engineering companies were sold in late July 2008
for a total cash consideration of approximately $43 million which was completed on July 25,
2008, The assets and liabilities of this subsidiary were fair valued at August 24, 2007 and as a
result the final sale had no material impact on the Consolidated Income Statement.

On August 26, 2008, the sale of Key8pan Ravenswood, LLC was completed for total cash
consideration of $2.9 billion. In advance of this sale, we terminated the Ravenswood Master
Lease, the lease under which the Company operated the Ravenswood facility, on June 20, 2008,
which was otherwise due to expire in 2009. The transaction also provided for the restructuring
and transfer of our interest in the Ravenswood Expansion, However, we will remain responsible
for all future lease payments under the sales/leaseback arrangement through May 2040. The total
consideration received from the Ravenswood Sale Transaction included a prepayment from
TransCanada of the future payments under the sales/leaseback arrangement on a present value
basis.

The information below highlights the major classes of assets and liabilities of the discontinued
operations, as well as major income and expense captions (in millions),

Income Statement Data
For the year ended March 31,

(in millions of dollars) 2009 2008
Total operating revenues $ 1545 § 374.4
Total operating expenses 111.2 3152
Operating income 43,3 59.2
Total other income (expense) {1.2) 14.0
Inncome (Yoss) before income taxes 42.1 73.2
Income tax provision {benefit) 17,8 30,2
Net income - 3 246 % 43.0

RBalance Sheet Data

At March 31,
(in millions of dollars) 2009 2008
ASSETS
Total current assets § 15.1 % 167.1
Deferred Charges 11.7 65.6
Property and Other Long Term Assets 3.2 2,792.7
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Total current liabilities $ 127 % 6081
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities - 1,252.7
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NOTE L ~ACQUISITIONS

The acquisition of KeySpan was completed on August 24, 2007 at a fotal cost of $7.6 billion,
The transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting for business
combinations in accordance with SFAS 141 “Business Combination.” The purchase price of
$7.6 billion was allocated to KeySpan’s assets and liabilities based on their estimated fair values
at the date of acquisition, The historical cost basis of KeySpan's assets and Habilities associated
with its gas distribution businesses, with minor exceptions, was determined to represent fair
value due to the existence of regulatory-approved rate plans based upon the recovery of historical
costs and a fair return thereon. Further, the historical cost basis of assets and liabilities associated
with electric generating units on Long Island that are under long-term power supply agreements
with LIPA, with minor exceptions, was determined to represent fair value due to the Power
Supply Agreement with LIPA that provides for the recovery of historical costs and a fair return
thercon.

The net assets acquired were initially assigned a provisional goodwill value of $3.9 billion.
During the post acquisition period, the provisional fair values applied were reviewed and a
number of adjustments were made to those provisional values as a result of better information
being available. KeySpan has been consolidated into National Grid ple from August 24, 2007
onward,
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The following table summarizes the fair value adjustments and calculation of goodwill:

(in millions of dollars)

Provistonal
Goodwill ot March Goodwill Final Goodwill a1
31,2008 Adjustmonts March 31, 2009
Purehase Price 3 7,574.3 § . $ 7,5714.3
KeySpan's Consolidated Equity af August 24, 2007 4,268.9 . 4,268.9
Goadwill Prior to Avquisition 1,669 - 1,665.9
KeySpan's Adjusted Consolidated Equity 2,603.0 - 2,603.0
Goodwill before Fair Value Adiustients 4,971.3 - 4,971.3
Fair Value Adjustiments
Assets Impacted:
Accounds Receivable (4.9 ’ 8.9) (13.4)
Materials and supplies 296.2 (171.5) 124.7
Equity Investments and Other (11.33 . {11.3)
Property Plant and Equipnient 224.4 {4.6} 219.8
Regulutory Assets 236.8 101.4 3382
Deferred Charges (32.8) - (32.8)
Liabilities Impacted:
Accomts Payable (46.4) {16.8) (63.2)
Taxes Accrued i (130.1) 4.2 (125.9)
Regulatory Linbilitics {189.6) - (189.6)
Postretirement Benefits and
Other Reserves (147.8) (147.8) (295.6)
Deferred Credits and Gther Liabilitics {612.2) 149.4 (462.8)
Deoferred Income Tax {50.9) 85.4 345
Long-tenu Dobt (58.2) . {58.2)
Nat Adjustment {526.8) {8.8) (535.6)
Intangible Asset Adjustment 186.1 {1.4) 184.7
Assels Held for Sate Fair Valne Adiustments 1,373.7 {38.9) 1,334.8
Total Goodwitl After Acqueisition g 19383 % 49,1 g 3,987.4
e R T T

A discussion of the more significant fair value adjustment follows.

Materials and supplies: KeySpan is entitled to emission credits associated with its electric
generating facilities on Long Island. These emission credits were originally valued at $296
million on August 24, 2007. The fair value of these credits was subsequently reduced to reflect a
decision of the DC circuit court to vacate the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) resulting in a
revised fair value of $125 million. As agreed to in the service agreements with LIPA, LIPA is
entitled to a portion of these credits which were also reduced appropriately and are reflected in
deferred credits and other liabilities. Subsequent to the final valuation, the emission credits were
further devalued, resulting in a $24,6 million impairment charge which is reflected in the 2009
Consolidated Statement of Income.

Equity Investments and Other: KeySpan owns a 600,000 barrel liquefied natural gas (LNG)
storage and receiving facility in Providence, Rhode Island, through its wholly owned subsidiary
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KeySpan LNG. KeySpan LNG proposed to upgrade the liquefied natural gas facility 10 accept
marine deliveries and to triple vaporization (or regasification) capacity to provide these services.
The proposed upgrade was subject to numerous FERC proceedings, as well as proceedings with
the Federal District Court in Rhode Island. At the time of the KeySpan acquisition, National
Grid ple decided not {o pursue the upgrade of the LNG facility. As a result, deferred project costs
of $11,3 million were written-oft as a direct charge to equity.

Property, Plant and Equipment: As required by SFAS 141, upon acquisition KeySpan calculated
the fair value of its property, plant and equipment for all its business segments, As noted
previously, the historical cost basis of KeySpan’s assets and liabilities associated with its gas
distribution businesses, with minor exceptions, was determined to represent fair value due to the
existence of regulatory-approved rate plans based upon the recovery of historical costs and a fair
return thereon. Further, the historical cost basis of KeySpan's electric generating units on Long
Island that are under long-term power supply agreements with LIPA, with minor exceptions, was
determined to represent fair value. The historical cost basis of property, plant and equipment
related to KeySpan’s non-regulated business, primarily land, was increased by $260 million to
represent fair value at date of acquisition,

The Company maintains gas production and development activities through its two wholly-
owned subsidiaries - KeySpan Exploration and Seneca-Upshur, At the end of fiscal year 2008,
the Company estimated that the capitalized costs associated with nataral gas and oil reserves of
these entities did not cxceed the ceiling test limitation. However, the fair value exercise
associated with SFAS 141 required a higher level of estimated operating costs and capital
expenditures, compared to the same estimates required to be used in the ceiling test calculation
resulting in a write down of $30 million to the natural gas and oil reserves,

As part of its synergy savings strategy, the Company is relinquishing three floors in its Brooklyn
headquartets at MetroTech. As a result, the Company reduced its property, plant and equipment
by $10.3 million associated with past leasehold improvement costs. Additionally, the Company
incurred a $10 million fee in consideration for the early termination of part of its lease of the
MetroTech office, This fee has been recorded as a current liability on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.

Regulatory Assels and Other Reserves: Upon acquisition, KeySpan made certain adjustments to
its pension and other postretirement reserve balances, as well as to its environmental reserve
balances, KeySpan adjusted certain assumptions underlying the calculations for its pension and
other postretirement reserves to align those assumptions with NGUSA’s pension and
postretirement reserve assumptions where appropriate. This alignment reduced KeySpan's
pension and other postretirement reserves approximately $180 million. Certain gas distribution
subsidiaries are subject to deferral accounting requirements mandated by the various state
regulators for pension costs and other postretirement benefit costs, As a result, approximately
$94 million of the decrease to the pension and other postretirement reserves was recorded as an
“offset” to regulatory assets,

KeySpan also adjusted certain assumptions underlying the calculations for its environmental
reserve to align those assumptions with NGUSA’s environmental reserve assumptions where
appropriate. This alignment increased the Company’s environmental reserve approximately $447
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million (originally $343 million). Certain gas distribution subsidiaries are subject (o deferral
accounting requirements mandated by the various state regulators for environmental costs. As a
result, approximately $432 million of the increase to the environmental reserve was recorded as
an “offset” to regulatory assets.

In fiscal year 2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit
(Court) denied the petitions of the New York Independent System Operator (“NYISO”) and
various New York Transmission Owners secking refunds for charges in the January - March
2000 reserve market, As a result of this favorable decision, KeySpan reversed a previously
established reserve for these proceedings of $18.1 million. As required by SFAS 141, this
amount was recorded as a direct benefit to equity. Purther, certain reserve balances related to
injuries and damages insurance, potential legal fees and emission credits were adjusted totaling
$46 million. Neither the $18.1 million NYISO reserve adjustment nor the other reserve
adjustments of $46 million impacted regulatory assets.

Accounts Payable: In March 2008, the FERC approved the NYISO In-City capacity mitigation
measures and revised the In-City capacity bid caps. KeySpan had a derivative swap instrument
with Morgan Stanley and the revised bid caps resulled in the derivative swap instrument’s
floating price being set to equal the strike price, thereby eliminating all cash flow between the
two partics for the remaining term of the swap agreement. The fair value of this derivative
instrument was calculated to be a liability of $17.9 million at August 24, 2007, such amount was
recorded as a current liability and a direct charge to equity.

Prior to the KeySpan Acquisition, KeySpan had a proposed project for the construction of a 250
MW combined cycle electric generation plant. In anticipation of this facility, KeySpan purchased
a gas turbine generator several years ago. KeySpan and LIPA executed a “memo of
understanding” for a power purchase agreenient (PPA) in 2001; however the PPA was never
executed by LIPA. As previously noted, the NYPSC ordered the Company to divest the
Ravenswood Generating Station to mitigate concerns on vertical market power. The Company
therefore determined that it was highly unlikely that a new investment in electric gencration by
National Grid ple would be possible. As a result, a $7.5 million current tiability was recorded for
consideration of contract breakage costs associated with a maintenance contract for the gas
turbine generator.

The Ravenswood Generating Station was sold to Transcanada Corporation in August 2008, The
Campany provided Transcanada with financial services for a limited period of time following the
sale al an agreed to fixed fee and accrued $10 million for potential unrecovered costs associated
with these services,

As discussed in Note C, “Commitments and Contingencies,” on May 31, 2007, KeySpan
received a Civil Investigative Demand (CID) from the United States Department of Justice,
Antitrust Divigion, requesting the production of documents and information relating to its
investigation of competitive issues in the New York City electric energy capacity market. A $5.3
million current liability was recorded representing the fair value for estimated legal fees
associated with this proceeding,

Additionally, as discussed in the Property, Plant and Equipment section above, the Company
recorded a $10 million liability related to its Brooklyn office facility.
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Regudatory Liabilities: As part of the NYPSC approval of the KeySpan Acquisition, a five year
rate plan was agreed to by KeySpan, the NYPSC and the other parties for Brooklyn Union and
KeySpan Gas East. The rate plans went into effect on January 1, 2008 and included
approximately $189.6 million of certain ratepayer refunds,

Deferred Income Taxes: 'The adjustments to deferred income taxes reflect, in part, the results of
the purchase accounting and fair value exercise undertaken for certain balance sheet accounts.
Additionally, as a consequence of a detailed review and reconciliation process of tax related
balances, we made adjustments to certain tax balances that resulted in a $22 million goodwill
adjustment.

Long-term Debt: As part of the fair value exercise, KeySpan calculated the fair value of
outstanding debt for all its non-regulated enterprises. This analysis required KeySpan to
eliminate prior balances associated with debt discounts and premiums, as well as settled interest
rate hedges that were being amortized. A $58 million long-term liability was recorded as a result
of this fair value analysis. The long-term debt associated with certain regulated gas distribution
businesses were not fair valued due to the existence of regulatory-approved rate plans that
provide for the recovery of historical costs,

Intangible Asset: Certain intangible assets were created as a result of the acquisition. The MSA
Agreement and the EMA Agreement with LIPA were valued at $150.7 million. These intangible
assets will be amortized over 20 years and 6 years respectively. Additionally, intangible assets of
$35.4 million were recorded for appliance service subsidiaries. These intangible assels relate to
contractual relationships and plumbing licenses. The intangible asset associated with the
plumbing license will be amortized over eight years, while the intangible asset associated with
contractual relationships has an indefinite life,

Fair Value of Assets Held for Sale: As part of the purchase accounting exercise and in
conjunction with the sale of the Ravenswood Generating Station and the engineering and
telecommunications companies, an evaluation of the fair value of these investments was
conducted. The evaluation resulted in an increase to the net book value of these companies of
approximately $1.3 billion, net of deferred taxes and cstimated selling costs,

Other Items:

During the post acquisition period, certain adjustments were made o assets held for sale as a
result of better information being available. These adjustments amounted to $38.9 million.
Additionally, as discussed in Note C, “Commitments and Contingencies” the Company will
continue to be responsible for lease payments under the Sale/Leaseback arrangement associated
with the Ravenswood Expansion throughout the remaining life of the arrangement, The
remaining lease payments were valued at $363 million; such amount has been recorded in
deferred credits and other liabilities.
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NOTE M -OTHER MATTERS

On July 20, 2009, Moody’s Investors Service changed the outlook for National Grid plc and its
rated subsidiaries, including the company’s debt ratings to stable outlook from negative as a
result of Moody's review of the company's results for FY2008/09 and medium-term forecasts.

In August 2009, a subsidiary of the Company issued $750 million of long-term debt at 4,881% with a
maturity date of August 15, 2019, Additionally, in September 2009 the same subsidiary issued $500
million of long-term debt at 3.553% with a maturity date of October 1, 2014. The debt is not registered
under the U.8. Securities Act of 1933 (“Sccurities Act™) and was sold in the United States only to
qualified institutional buyers in reliance on Rule 144A under the Securities Act and to certain non-U.S.
persons in transactions outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act.
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